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Corporate Profile

Altera Corporation, The Programmable Solutions
Company®, is a world leader in one of the fastest
growing segments of the semiconductor industry:
high-density programmable logic devices (PLDs).
Altera PLDs are standard integrated circuits that offer
significant advantages over custom logic chips such
as application-specific integrated circuits (ASICs).
Today’s high-density PLDs, used in concert with
Altera’s desktop software design tools and
optimized intellectual property building blocks,
allow electronic systems manufacturers to execute
on a single chip the same functionality that pre-
viously consumed an entire printed circuit board.
This methodology, called “system on a programmable
chip” (SOPC), helps electronic systems manufacturers
shorten time-to-market and reduce development costs.

Altera serves over 13,000 customers in three primary
market segments: communications, electronic data
processing, and industrial applications. The Company
sells its chips worldwide and derives nearly half of its
revenues from markets outside the United States.
Altera common stock is traded on The Nasdaq Stock
Market® under the symbol ALTR. Altera’s web site is
located at http://www.altera.com.



Financial Highlights

Years ended December 31,

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Sales

Income before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle

Net income

1996

$ 497,306

Diluted income per share before cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle

Diluted net income per share
Income from operations

Total research and development expenses

Capital expenditures

Cash and short-term investments

Stockholders’ equity

Sales

(dollars in millions)

1,377

837
631 654
497 ‘ ‘
96 97 98 99 00

Net Income
(dollars in millions)

109,135
109,135

0.29
0.29
168,093
49,513
45,172
280,850
370,245

497
224
154
133
109 I |
96 97 98 99 00

1997

$ 631,114 $

151,517
133,453

0.39
0.34
226,955
54,417
80,879
377,569
536,687

1998

654,342

154,387
154,387

0.39
0.39
231,843
59,864
23,950
579,106
881,721

Cash and Investments

(dollars in millions)

846

579
378
281
96 97 98 99

1,134

00

1999

§ 836,623

223,994
223,994

0.54

0.54
306,022
86,065
29,821
845,666
1,118,073

2000

$1,376,815

496,907
496,907

1.19

1.19
521,164
178,678
87,508
1,133,609
1,247,930

Stockholders’ Equity

(dollars in millions)

882
537
370 |
96 97 98 99

1,248

1,118

00



Letter to Shareholders

Rodney Smith
Chairman of the Board
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We are pleased to report that 2000 was again a
year of record revenue and profit for Altera. Revenue
grew 65 percent to $1.38 billion. Income from
continuing operations increased 76 percent to $394
million, 28.6 percent of revenue, both new records
for the company. Altera’s profitability remains the
best among programmable logic companies.

The year began with accelerating top-line growth,
driven by robust demand across all our markets
and led by our communications customers. These
very favorable conditions continued until the fourth
quarter, when demand softened as we felt the impact
of industry-wide inventory corrections at contract
manufacturers and slower demand in some of our
markets. For the year, revenue in North America,
our largest geographic region, grew 68 percent to
$787 million. Revenue in Europe climbed an impressive
88 percent to $300 million. Revenue in Japan grew 31
percent to $207 million, and revenue in the Asia Pacific
region grew 70 percent to $83 million. We continued
to strengthen our competitive position during the
year and the company’s market reach remains broad.
Customers developing a wide variety of systems—
including wireless infrastructure, networking switches
and routers and enterprise storage—increasingly
turn to Altera for the time-to-market advantages and
design flexibility of programmable logic.

This strong sales growth was accompanied by
excellent financial performance. Gross margins set
an all-time record at 66.1 percent of sales, up from
64.0 percent in 1999. At 13.0 percent of revenue,
research and development spending more than
doubled as we made substantial commitments to
develop new technology for future growth. Selling,
general and administrative expenses decreased
to 15.2 percent of revenue from 17.1 percent in
1999. Operating income increased to 37.9 percent
of revenue. Our balance sheet remained very strong,
with no debt and a year-end cash position of
$1.13 billion, up $288 million from the prior year.
In December, we sold our interest in WaferTech, LLC,
to Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Corpora-



tion, our strategic manufacturing partner, and
received $350 million in gross proceeds. Altera’s
strong cash generation allowed us to repurchase
17.1 million shares of our stock during the year
at a cost of $555 million.

The year saw the most rapid product introduction
pace in the company’s history, and these new
products are ramping quickly. Most significantly,
we introduced our Excalibur™ family of embedded
processor solutions, which includes a range of high-
density programmable logic devices (PLDs) with
embedded processors. Excalibur solutions create a
true system on a programmable chip (SOPC), mark-
ing an important first for the programmable logic
industry and laying a powerful foundation for future
Altera growth. Other new product introductions
covered all segments of our business. Products
introduced this year are now 4 percent of revenue
and will quickly become important contributors to
revenue growth. The company’s mainstream prod-
ucts target attractive high-volume applications where
Altera’s competitive position is particularly strong.
These products grew 159 percent to $656 million in
revenue. In addition, we made significant improve-
ments to our Quartus™ software and broadened our
range of intellectual property offerings.

The programmable logic market consists of two
segments that use different methods to implement
logic: “product-term” devices and “look-up table”
devices. Altera’s product-term devices include the
Classic™ and MAX® families; look-up table devices
include the FLEX® APEX™, and ACEX™ families.

Altera is the product-term device market leader. Our
revenue from product-term devices grew 47 percent
in 2000, led by 364 percent growth from the MAX
7000A family, making Altera the number one sup-
plier in the 3.3-volt space. The MAX 7000B family,
which began shipping this year, is the most sophisti-
cated product in this market and is showing good
customer acceptance and growth prospects. We will
continue to invest to extend our technology lead.

Look-up table device sales growth was very strong,
up 91 percent to $743 million, 54 percent of total
sales for the year. We have gained market share in
this category every year since we entered the market
in 1993. The APEX 20KE introduction created
the fastest new family growth ramp in company
history. These devices—which were purchased by
more than 900 customers, including all our major
accounts—are now present in more than 2,000
active designs. With unique features that are ideal
for communications applications, this family is
experiencing a steadily increasing flow of new design
opportunities. Leveraging Altera’s patented redun-
dancy architecture—which significantly improves
yields and lowers cost—the APEX 20KE family
includes the highest density programmable device
available in commercial quantities today, the 1.5-million-
gate APEX EP20K1500E.

The real workhorse in the look-up table category
is the 2.5-volt FLEX 10KE family, which grew 318%
for the year and is used in a wide variety of high-
volume applications. The newer generations of
devices, 2.5 volts and below, address the fastest
growth segment for the look-up table category, and
at year end nearly 40 percent of our look-up table
sales were in this attractive growth area. Significant
performance improvements in our Quartus software
—including compile times up to ten times faster
and design speed increases of 70 percent—have
also contributed to our progress in the look-up table
arena. These performance improvements allow
Altera customers to complete designs in a fraction
of the time previously required, directly increasing
customer productivity.

To be successful long-term, we need to create even
more robust devices built with world-class manu-
facturing processes, powerful software that addresses
traditional hardware and software design needs,
and a growing library of intellectual property (IP).

“Excalibur solutions create a true system on a programmable chip

(SOPC), marking an important first for the programmable logic

industry and laying a powerful foundation for future Altera growth.”



John Daane

President and Chief Executive Officer
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EXCALIBUR"™

Our success also depends on expanding customer
relationships so that we are integrated with their
system-level design teams and can facilitate the usage
of PLDs in new applications. We have seen progress
in all these areas this year.

Our long-standing goal has been to develop advanced
technology that integrates more key elements of
a system into our programmable devices, creating
true system-on-a-programmable-chip solutions for our
customers. Our real competition in this area includes
other types of devices, particularly application-
specific integrated circuits (ASICs) and application-
specific standard products (ASSPs). With the products
introduced during 2000, we can now offer a broader
range of PLD-based solutions that were previously
only possible with ASICs and ASSPs, while adding the
benefits of programmability—increased flexibility, the
ability to easily differentiate a design, and faster time-
to-market.

The introduction of Altera’s Excalibur embedded
processor solutions represents a major milestone in
our drive toward the SOPC goal. As pioneers in this
area, we now have a new opportunity previously
available only to non-programmable alternatives,
and have dramatically expanded the market space for
programmable devices. We believe that the market
for embedded processors and controllers—an entirely
new market for Altera’s devices—will increase our
addressable market by approximately $22 billion.
With the Excalibur embedded processor family, we
are the first to market in this area.

Excalibur solutions combine logic, memory, and
for the first time, a choice of processors on a single
device. Altera currently offers three RISC-based
processors: the proprietary Nios™ soft core proces-
sor for designs requiring maximum flexibility, and
ARM®- and MIPS-based™ hard cores for maximum
performance. The Nios soft core is an intellectual
property function that can be incorporated
into a design targeted for an Altera device, while
the hard cores are processors embedded into the



Excalibur device architecture. The Nios processor
began shipping mid-year, and the ARM- and MIPS-
based Excalibur devices will be available in volume
by mid-2001. Over time, we expect to expand the
processor choices available.

Excalibur solutions allow the customer to reduce
a typical embedded processor design timeline by
enabling parallel hardware and software design using
Altera’s Quartus software. These capabilities enable
Excalibur to successfully combine the traditional
time-to-market and flexibility of programmable
devices with the attractiveness of a broader system
solution that can be implemented on a single device.

In 2000, we also made progress in several other areas
that strengthen our SOPC capability. We increased
the number of intellectual property cores available
to our customers and Altera continues to offer the
widest range of IP functions in the PLD industry. Our
IP offerings—which include a variety of standard
functions that can be easily implemented on a PLD—
broaden the system-level appeal of our devices and
allow customers to focus their scarce design resources
on other tasks. Also this year, we offered our customers
advanced industry-standard EDA and simulation
tools. These tools are familiar to ASIC designers and
fit into standard design flows. In addition, several
strategic acquisitions brought specialized software
development, system design, and communications
application expertise to the company.

This year’s rapid new product pace will continue
with the introduction of new devices that provide
even greater performance and speed. In early 2001,
we will begin shipping the APEX 20KC family,
the industry’s first all-layer copper devices, and the
Mercury™ family, the world’s first programmable ASSPs.
Our Quartus software will see further enhancements
and faster performance, and we will continue to
broaden our IP offerings to make our devices even
more attractive in a wider array of applications.

Finally, this was a year of leadership transition for
Altera and for the two of us. John Daane joined
the company in November as president and chief
executive officer. Rodney Smith, who served as Altera’s
chief executive since the company’s founding, con-
tinues as chairman of the board.

Altera remains committed to producing superior
growth and the best profitability among program-
mable logic companies. Our goal is to fully capture
the considerable growth potential in the programma-
ble logic market and to be known to our customers
and valued by our shareholders as the premier pro-
grammable logic company in the world. Sustaining
Altera’s new product development pace and taking
our innovative ideas to market require the energy,
knowledge and dedication of nearly 2000 Altera
employees worldwide. We thank them and you, our
shareholders, for your support.

gk

John Daane
President and Chief Executive Officer

Rodney Smith
Chairman of the Board



Selected Consolidated Financial Data

Five-Year Summary
Years ended December 31,

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
Statements of Operations Data:

Sales $1,376,815 $ 836,623 $ 654342 $ 631,114 $ 497,306
Cost of sales 466,994 301,322 249,474 236,958 191,958
Gross margin 909,821 535,301 404,868 394,156 305,348
Research and development expenses 172,373 86,065 59,864 54,417 49,513
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 209,979 143,214 113,161 112,784 87,742
Acquired in-process research and development expense 6,305 — — — —
Income from operations 521,164 306,022 231,843 226,955 168,093
Gain on sale of WaferTech, LLC 178,105 — —_ —_ —
Interest and other income (expense), net 46,145 37,055 12,340 2,616 1,044

Income before income taxes, equity
investment and cumulative effect

of change in accounting principle 745,414 343,077 244,183 229,571 169,137
Income before equity investment and cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle 498,307 231,578 164,827 151,517 109,135
Equity in loss of WaferTech, LLC 1,400 7,584 10,440 — —
Income before cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle 496,907 223,994 154,387 151,517 109,135
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — — — 18,064 —
Net income $ 496,907 § 223994 $ 154,387 $ 133,453 $ 109,135

Income per share before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle:

Basic $ 1.25 § 0.57 $ 0.41 $ 043 § 0.31

Diluted 1.19 0.54 0.39 0.39 0.29
Net income per share:

Basic $ 125 § 057 § 041 § 038 § 0.31

Diluted 1.19 0.54 0.39 0.34 0.29
Shares used in computing income per share:

Basic 396,849 396,158 373,972 354,100 349,624

Diluted 416,629 414,928 406,356 410,464 403,252

Balance Sheet Data:

Working capital $1,013,155 $ 785,359 $ 587,923 $ 430,371 $ 295,020
Total assets 2,004,134 1,439,599 1,093,331 952,518 778,212
Long-term debt — — — 230,000 230,000
Stockholders’ equity 1,247,930 1,118,073 881,721 536,687 370,245
Book value per share 3.21 2.81 2.26 1.50 1.06

Research and

Development Gross Margin S,Gand A Income from Operations
(dollars in millions) (percentage of sales) (percentage of sales) (dollars in millions)
66 21
61 62 62 4 °

B o180
15 306

227 232

168 | |
9 00 96 97 98 99 00 96 97 98 99

00

179
86
s 54 60 I
96 97 98 99 00 96 97 98 9



About Your Investment

Stock Ownership Profile

The Company estimates that at December 31, 2000, there
were more than 100,000 holders of Altera stock.

Stock Price

Altera’s initial public offering took place on March 31,
1988. The Company’s price-to-earnings ratio at each
year-end for the last five years was as follows:

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000
29.6 214 39.0 45.9 27.7

Computed using earnings that exclude the cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle in 1997, and the one-time effects relating to the
WaferTech transaction in 2000.

Trading Volume

The average trading volume in the company’s stock
increased 6.8% in 2000 over 1999, as measured by
Nasdaq® Trading volume in 2000 averaged 9.4 million
shares per day, compared to 8.8 million shares per day
in 1999 and 10.2 million shares in 1998, retroactively
adjusted for 2-for-1 splits of the Company’s common stock
in the fourth quarter of 1996, the second quarter of 1999,
and the third quarter of 2000.

Estimated Stock Ownership Percentage

Institutional Investors 80%
Individuals 15%
Officers, Directors & Employees 5%

Comparative Stock Performance

Ql Q2 @3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q@3 Q4 QI Q2 @3 Q4 QI Q2 Q@3 Q4 QI Q2 Q3 Q4

96 97 98 99 00
B AR S&P 500 Index S&P Semiconductor
Index

Average Daily Trading Volume
(thousands of shares)

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Ql Q2 Q304 Ql Q2 Q304 Ql Q2 Q3 Q4
96 97 98 99 00



Selected Consolidated Financial Data

Sales
(dollars in thousands)

823
630 656
585
553 | |
9% 97 98 99 00

(dollars in millions)

1,377
837
631 654
497 ‘ ‘
96 97 98 99 00

2000 Revenue

by Geographic Channel
Asia Pacific
o
6% Industrial
Japan 11%
15%
; EDP
North America
57% 17%
Europe
22%
$1.38 Billion
Total Assets Working Capital
(dollars in millions) (dollars in millions)
2,004
1,013

1,440 785
1,093 588
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778 430
| 295 |
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Sales Per Employee

Units Sold
(units in millions)

96

2000 Revenue
by Market Segment

Consumer & Other
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Communications
67%

$1.38 Billion

Book Value Per Share

(dollars)
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1.50
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Capital Expenditures
(dollars in millions)
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2000 CMOS
PLD Market Share

Other
Actel 8%

Lattice
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34%

Xilinx
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$4.05 Billion
(company reports and Altera estimates)

Stockholders’ Equity

(dollars in millions)
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882
537
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Except for the historical information presented, the matters discussed in this Report include forward-looking statements, as further described
under Item 7 and elsewhere in this Report. Forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking words, such as“ may,”
“could,” “expect,” “ believe,” “ plan,” “ anticipate,” “ continue,” or other similar words.

PART |
Item 1. Business.
General

Altera Corporation, referred to as “we,” “us’ or “our,” designs, manufactures and markets programmable logic devices, or PLDs, and
associated development tools. Programmable logic devices are semiconductor integrated circuits that our customers can program using our
proprietary software, which operates on personal computers and engineering workstations. Founded in 1983, we were one of thefirst suppliers
of complementary metal oxide semiconductor, or CMOS, programmable logic devices and are currently a global leader in this market. We
offer abroad line of CMOS programmabl e logic devices that address high-speed, high-density and low-power applications. Our products serve
awide range of markets, including telecommunications, data communications, el ectronic data processing and industrial applications.

Strategy

Three principal types of digital integrated circuits are used in most electronic systems: microprocessors, memory and logic. Microprocessors
are used for control and computing tasks, memory is used to store programming instructions and data, and logic is used to manage the
interchange and manipulation of digital signals within a system. While system designers employ a relaively small number of standard
architectures to meet their microprocessor and memory needs, they require awide variety of logic circuits to differentiate their end products.

According to Dataquest, the CM OS logic market consists of the following segments:

Semi-custom or application-specific integrated circuits, or ASICs
Standard logic

Full custom devices

Other forms of logic integrated circuits, including chipsets

The ASIC segment is comprised of programmable logic, gate arrays and cell-based integrated circuits (also referred to as standard cells). Ina
broad sense, all of these devices are indirectly competitive as they generally may be used in the same types of applications in electronic
products. However, differencesin cost, performance, density, flexibility, ease-of-use and time-to-market dictate the extent to which they may
be directly competitive for particular applications.

Programmable logic's primary advantage is that it allows for quicker design cycles, meeting customers’ needs for quick time-to-market.
Programmable logic allows customers to experiment and iterate their designs in arelatively short amount of time and with minimum cost. In
most instances, thisis quicker and easier than achieving a design in a deterministic fashion. This advantage is amplified by the ability to have
working silicon at the time the design is findized.

Another advantage of programmable logic is that, particularly for small volume applications, it lowers the per unit cost of producing
customized components. While programmable logic inherently consumes more silicon (because of its genera application and on-chip
programming overhead), in many cases, depending on the complexity of the design and total unit requirements, this higher per unit cost is
more than offset by the high fixed costs of layout and mask-making required to produce a custom integrated circuit. Further, because
unprogrammed PLDs are standard devices, we, our distributors and subcontract manufacturers — not our customers — hold stocks of
inventory, thereby enhancing the cost advantage of PLDs for our customers.

Our dtrategy is to compete with other companies in the ASIC segment of the CMOS logic market by providing a total solution for our
customers’ programming logic needs. To accomplish this goal, we offer our customers:

B PLDswith the speed, density and package types to meet their specific needs

B State-of-the-art development tools that are easy to use and compatible with other industry standard electronic design automation, or
EDA, tools

B Optimized system-level megafunctions to speed their design process

B A complete customer support system



We have been able to introduce new product families that, as compared to their predecessors, provide more functionality at a much lower price
for any given density because high-volume manufacturing and emerging process technologies have resulted in cost decreases. We believe
these new product families achieve the integration, density, performance and cost advantages of other ASIC solutions. We believe that our
competitiveness within the ASIC segment in these areas, along with the inherent advantages of programmable logic discussed above, will
enable us to compete for designs traditionally served by other ASIC devices.

Products

We sell awide range of products, with atotal of more than 1,000 product options among our PLD families. We offer PLDsin two fundamental
technologies: our MAX® products, which use floating-gate process technology, and our FL EX®, APEX™, ACEX™ and Excalibur™
products, which use static random access memory, or SRAM, process technology. Our proprietary development tools, the MAX+PL us® Il
and Quartus™ |1 software, provide design development and programming support for our PLDs. We also offer hardware used in programming
PLDs.

Devices:

We offer awide range of general-purpose PLD families. Each device family offers unique features as well as differing density and performance
specifications for implementing particular applications. Some of our major device familiesinclude the following:

MAX 7000, MAX 7000S, MAX 7000A and MAX 7000B: The MAX 7000, MAX 7000S, MAX 7000A and MAX 7000B device families are
among the fastest and most widely used high-density programmable logic families in the industry. Devices in these families range from 600 to
10,000 usable gates and up to 256 pins and provide several enhanced features, including support for the industry standard Joint Test Action
Group boundary-scan test, or BST, circuitry and in-system programmability, or ISP. ISP functionality allows devices to be programmed after
they are soldered onto the printed circuit board, thereby minimizing the possibility of lead damage or electrostatic discharge exposure when
reprogrammed. The MAX 7000 device families, which includes the 5.0-V MAX 7000 devices and the 5.0-V, I SP-based MAX 7000S devices,
the 3.3-V MAX 7000A devicefamily and what we believeis theindustry’s fastest programmable logic solution, the 2.5-V MAX 7000B device
family, are fabricated on advanced CMOS el ectrically erasable programmable read-only memory, or EEPROM, processes, providing a high-
density, high-speed, I/0-intensive programmable logic solution. Devices in these families are supported by our MAX+PLUS Il development
software.

MAX 3000A: The MAX 3000A devices, which are targeted at high volume, low cost applications, range from 600 to 5,000 usable gates and up
to 158 pins. The MAX 3000A devices include support for BST circuitry and | SP, are fabricated on advanced CMOS EEPROM processes and
are supported by our MAX+PLUS |1 devel opment software.

FLEX 8000: The SRAM-based FLEX 8000 device family uses our patented FastTrack® Interconnect structure, a continuous routing structure
that allows for fast, predictable interconnect delays. Devices in this family range from 2,500 to 16,000 usable gates and up to 304 pins.
FLEX 8000 devices have a 5.0-V supply voltage, can interface with 3.3-V devices through the MultiVolt™ 1/O feature, provide low standby
power and are supported by our MAX+PLUS Il development software.

FLEX 6000: Our SRAM-based FLEX 6000 family delivers the flexibility and time-to-market advantage of programmable logic at prices that
are competitive with gate arrays. Devices in this family range from 10,000 to 24,000 usable gates and up to 256 pins and include devices that
operate at both 5.0-V and 3.3-V supply voltages. Featuring the very efficient OptiFLEX® architecture, FLEX 6000 devices provide aflexible
and cost-effective aternative to gate arrays for high-volume production. Every feature in the OptiFLEX architecture is targeted at producing
maximum performance and utilization in the smallest possible die area. Devices in this family are supported by our MAX+PLUSII and
Quartus 11 development software.

FLEX 10K, FLEX 10KA and FLEX 10KE: Our SRAM-based FLEX 10K, FLEX 10KA and FLEX 10KE device families offer a combination
of logic and embedded memory on a single-chip architecture. Devicesin these PLD families range from 10,000 to 250,000 usable gates and up
to 672 pins. With these high densities, the 5.0-V FLEX 10K, the 3.3-V FLEX 10KA and the 2.5-V FLEX 10KE families may be used to
address the increasing levels of integration needed to accommodate today’s complex designs. The FLEX 10K family includes 0.5- and 0.42-
micron devices, the FLEX 10KA family includes 0.35- and 0.3-micron devices and the FLEX 10KE family includes 0.25- and 0.22-micron
devices. Devices in these families are supported by our MAX+PLUS |1 devel opment software.

APEX 20K, APEX 20KE and APEX 20KC: Our SRAM-based APEX 20K, APEX 20KE and APEX 20KC device families offer complete
system-level integration on a single device, and the APEX 20K C is the first PLD family utilizing copper for all layers of metal interconnect.
Devices in these families range from 30,000 to over 1.5 million usable gates and up to 1,020 pins. With high densities and performance
enhancements, the APEX 20K, APEX 20KE and APEX 20KC families deliver the latest in design flexibility and efficiency for high-
performance, system-on-a-programmable-chip, or SOPC, design. APEX 20K devices, which operate at a 2.5V supply voltage, and the



APEX 20KE and APEX 20KC devices, which operate at a 1.8-V supply voltage, employ the innovative MultiCore™ architecture, which
combines the strengths of our look-up table, product term block and enhanced embedded memory block structures. The APEX 20K,
APEX 20KE and APEX 20K C devices are supported by our Quartus |1 development software.

ACEX 1K: Our SRAM-based ACEX 1K device family, which combines |ook-up tables and embedded array blocks, offers complete system-
level integration on a single device. Devices in this family range from 10,000 to 100,000 usable gates and up to 484 pins. Operating at 2.5V
supply voltage, the ACEX 1K devices are supported by our MAX+PLUS Il development software.

EXCALIBUR EMBEDDED PROCESSOR SOLUTIONS: The Excalibur solutions consist of three embedded processor families, our Nios™
soft core embedded processor solution, the ARM®-based embedded processor solution and the MIPS-based™ embedded processor solution.
Our Nios soft core embedded processor, which was available in August 2000 and is supported by our Quartus I devel opment software, isthe
industry’s first reduced instruction set computer, or RISC, embedded processor commercially released by a major PLD vendor as a viable
aternative to discrete processor solutions. The ARM-based embedded processor PLD family uses technology licensed from ARM Limited and
will consist of multiple devices that each contain an ARM-based RISC processor core. The M1PS-based embedded processor PLD family uses
technology licensed from MIPS Technologies, Inc. and will consist of multiple devices that each contain a MIPS-based RISC processor core.
We expect the ARM-based and MIPS-based embedded processor PLD families to be available in the first half of 2001.

Devel opment Tools:

Customers use our development system software and hardware to design and implement logic designs on our PLDs. Our MAX+PLUS Il and
Quartus |1 software development tools run under the Microsoft Windows-based operating environments on personal computers in addition to
the UNIX environment on SUN, HP and IBM workstations. We a so provide interfaces to many industry-standard EDA tools, including those
offered by Cadence Design Systems, Inc., Mentor Graphics Corporation, Synopsys, Inc. and Synplicity, Inc. We aso sell hardware for
programming our PLDs.

In January 2001, we released the Quartus Il development software, which we believe delivers superior designer productivity and supports
system-level designs and integration with third-party tools.

Marketing, Sales and Customers

We market our products in the United States, Canada, Europe, Asia, South America and Australia through a network of direct sales personnel
and electronics distributors. In the United States and Canada, we aso rely on a network of independent sales representatives. From time to
time, we expect that we may add or delete independent sales representatives or distributors from our selling organization as we deem
appropriate to the level of business.

Throughout the United States, we have domestic sales management offices in major metropolitan areas. Our direct sales personnel and
independent sales representatives focus on major strategic accounts. Distributors generally focus sdlling activities on the broad base of small-
and medium-size customers, as well as demand fulfillment services to our major strategic accounts. Our distributor in the United States
currently is Arrow Electronics, Inc. In 2000, Arrow acquired Wyle Electronics, which also had served as one of our domestic distributors.
Arrow isresponsible for creating customer demand from its base of customers, providing technical support and other value-added services and
filling customers’ orders.

Our international business is supported by a network of distributors throughout Europe, Asia, South America and Austraia. We have
representation in every major European country, Israel, Australia, South America and various countries throughout the Pacific Rim. In
addition, we maintain international sales support offices in the metropolitan areas of Oosterhout (Netherlands), Helsinki, Hong Kong, Hsinchu
(Taiwan), London, Ottawa, Paris, Seoul, Shanghai, Stockholm, Stuttgart, Tokyo and Turin.

Customer support and service are important aspects of selling and marketing our products. We provide several levels of technical user support,
including applications assistance, design services and customer training. Our applications engineering staff publishes data sheets and
application notes, conducts technical seminars and provides design assi stance via Internet and electronic links to the customer’s design station.
In 2000, we expanded our customer support services by establishing an Applications Engineering Center near San Diego, Californiato provide
technical support to our customers. Customer service is supported with inventory maintained both by us and at distributors’ locations to
provide short-term delivery of chips.

Through 2000, al international sales were denominated in U.S. dollars. Our international sales are subject to those risks common to all
international activities, including governmental regulation, possible imposition of tariffs or other trade barriers and currency fluctuations.

In the year ended December 31, 2000, worldwide sales through distributors accounted for over 95% of total sales. In 2000, two distributors
accounted for more than 10% of sales; one accounted for 58% of sales, and the other accounted for 11% of sales. In 1999, three distributors



accounted for more than 10% of sales. These three distributors accounted for 34%, 19% and 13% of sales, whereasin 1998, they accounted for
30%, 21% and 11% of sales. The percentage increase for our largest distributor in 2000 compared to previous years is attributable to the
combination of Arrow and Wyle, our two largest distributors in 1999 and 1998. No single end customer accounted for more than 10% of our
salesin 2000, 1999 or 1998. International sal es constituted 43% of salesin 2000, 44% of salesin 1999 and 45% of salesin 1998.

For adetailed description of our sales by geographic region, see Item 7 and Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements.
Competition
The ASIC Segment:

The ASIC segment of the CMOS logic market is comprised of programmable logic, gate arrays and cell-based integrated circuits (also referred
to as standard cells). In a broad sense, al of these devices are indirectly competitive as they generally may be used in the same types of
applications in electronic products. However, differences in cost, performance, density, flexibility, ease-of-use and time-to-market dictate the
extent to which they may be directly competitive for particular applications. As PLDs have increased in density and performance and
decreased in cost, they have become more directly competitive with other ASICs, especially gate arrays. With the introduction of our
FLEX 10K family and new APEX 20K, APEX 20KE and APEX 20K C device families, which are our highest density PLDs, along with our
FLEX 6000 devices, which are designed and priced to be very competitive with lower density gate arrays, we seek to grow by directly
competing with other companies in the ASIC segment. Many of the companies in the ASIC segment have substantially greater financial,
technical and marketing resources than we do. We cannot assure you that we will be successful in competing in the ASIC segment of the
CMOS logic market.

The Programmable Logic Sub-Segment:
The principal factors of competition in the programmable logic sub-segment of the ASIC market include:

The capability of software development tools and system-level functional programming blocks
Product performance and features

Quality and reliability

Pricing

Technica service and support

The ability to respond rapidly to technical innovation

Customer service

We believe that we compete favorably with respect to these factors and that our proprietary device architecture and our installed base of
development systems with proprietary software may provide some competitive advantage. However, as is true of the semiconductor industry
as a whole, the PLD sub-segment is intensely competitive and is characterized by rapid technological change, rapid rates of product
obsolescence and price erosion resulting from both product obsolescence and price competition. All of these factors may influence our future
operating results.

We experience significant direct competition from other companies that are in the programmable logic sub-segment. Our competition in this
market sub-segment is from suppliers of productsthat are marketed as either fiel d-programmabl e gate arrays, or FPGAS, or complex PLDs, or
CPLDs. In the high density CPLD market, we directly compete primarily with Xilinx, Inc. and Lattice Semiconductor Corporation.

Companies that currently compete with us in our core business may have preferred vendor status with many of our customers, extensive
marketing power, name recognition and other significant advantages over us. Additionaly, the semiconductor industry as a whole includes
many large domestic and foreign companies that have substantially greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we do. We expect
that as the dollar volume of the programmable logic sub-segment grows, the attractiveness of this sub-segment to larger, more powerful
competitors will continue to increase. Substantial direct or indirect competition could have a material adverse effect on our future sales and
operating results.



Manufacturing
Wafer Supply:

We do not directly manufacture our silicon wafers. Our wafers are produced using various semiconductor foundry wafer fabrication service
providers. This enables us to take advantage of these suppliers’ high volume economies of scale, as well as direct and more timely access to
advancing process technology.

We presently have our primary wafer supply arrangements with two semiconductor vendors: Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company,
or TSMC, and Sharp Corporation. We may negotiate additional foundry contracts and establish other sources of wafer supply for our products
as such arrangements become economically useful or technically necessary. Although there are a number of new state-of-the-art wafer
fabrication facilities currently under construction around the world, semiconductor foundry capacity can become limited quickly and without
much natice. Furthermore, since only newer fabrication or substantially retrofitted facilities are able to manufacture wafers that incorporate
leading-edge technologies, any significant decrease in capacity of these facilities would have a material adverse effect on our ability to obtain
wafer supply for our newer products. Accordingly, we cannot assure you that any shortage in foundry manufacturing capacity will not result in
production problems for usin the future.

In December 2000, we sold our 23% equity ownership interest in WaferTech, LLC to a subsidiary of TSMC for approximately $350 million in
cash. WaferTech wasformed in 1996 as ajoint venture among us, TSMC and several other partnersto build and operate a wafer manufacturing
plant in Camas, Washington. As aresult of the sale, we were released from all of our obligations under the operating agreement. We expect
WaferTech to continue to supply wafers to us through TSMC. Accordingly, we do not believe that the sale of our ownership interest in
WaferTech will have an adverse effect on our ability to obtain sufficient quantities of wafersin the future.

We depend upon our foundry vendors to produce wafers at acceptable yields and to deliver them to usin atimely manner. The manufacture of
advanced CMOS semiconductor wafers is a highly complex process, and we have from time to time experienced difficulties in obtaining
acceptable yields and timely deliveries from our suppliers. Good production yields are particularly important to our business, including our
ability to meet customers' demand for products and to maintain profit margins. Wafer production yields are dependent on a wide variety of
factors, including the level of contaminants in the manufacturing environment, impurities in the materials used and the performance of
personnel and equipment. As is common in the semiconductor industry, we have experienced and expect to experience production yield
problems from time to time. Difficulties in production yields can often occur when we begin production of new products or transition to new
processes. These difficulties can potentialy result in significantly higher costs and lower product availability. For example, in the second
quarter of 1999, difficulties with a vendor’s manufacturing process limited the availability of packaging material (piece parts) used in certain
of our new and proprietary FineLine BGA™, or bal-grid array, packages causing limited production. This in turn limited shipments of our
new FLEX 10KE product family. Our management expects to continue to introduce new and established products using new process
technologies, and we may encounter similar start-up difficulties during the transition to such process technol ogies.

Further, production throughput times vary considerably among our wafer suppliers, and we may experience delays from time to time in
processing some of our products which aso may result in higher costs and lower product availability. We expect that, as is customary in the
semiconductor business, in order to maintain or enhance our competitive position, we will continue to convert our fabrication process
arrangements to larger wafer sizes, smaller circuit geometries and more advanced process technologies. Such conversions entail inherent
technological risks that can adversely affect yields, costs and delivery lead time. In addition, if for any reason we were required to seek
aternative sources of supply, shipments could be delayed significantly while such sources are qualified for volume production, and any
significant delay could have a material adverse effect on our operating results.

Testing and Assembly:

After wafer manufacturing is completed, each wafer is tested using a variety of test and handling equipment. Such wafer testing is
accomplished at Sharp, TSMC and our San Jose pilot line facility, which is used primarily for new product development. This testing is
performed on equipment owned by us and consigned to the vendors.

Resulting wafers are shipped to various Asian assembly suppliers, where good die are separated into individua chips that are then
encapsulated in ceramic or plastic packages. As isthe case with our wafer supply business, we employ a number of independent suppliers for
assembly purposes. This enables us to take advantage of subcontractor high volume manufacturing, related cost savings, speed and supply
flexibility. It also provides us with timely access to cost-effective advanced process and package technol ogies. We purchase almost all of our
assembly services from AMKOR (Korea and the Philippines), ASAT (Hong Kong), ASE (Malaysia) and Fujitsu (Japan).

Following assembly, each of the packaged units receives final testing, marking and inspection prior to shipment to customers. We obtain
amost al of our final test and back-end operation services from AMKOR, ASAT and ASE. Final testing by these assembly suppliers is



accomplished through the use of our proprietary test software and hardware, which is consigned to or owned by such suppliers and/or third-
party commercia testers. These suppliers also handle shipment of the products to our customers or distributors.

Additionally, almost all of the manufacturing, assembly, testing and packaging of our development system hardware products are performed
by outside contractors. Although our wafer fabrication, assembly and other subcontractors have not recently experienced any serious work
stoppages, the economic, social and political situations in countries where certain subcontractors are located are unpredictable and can be
volatile. Any prolonged work stoppages or other inability to manufacture and assemble our products would have a material adverse effect on
our operating results. Furthermore, the risks of earthquakes or power shortages and economic risks, such as extreme currency fluctuations,
adverse changes in tax laws, tariff or freight rates or interruptions in air transportation, could have a material adverse effect on our operating
results.

Backlog

Our backlog of released orders as of December 31, 2000 was approximately $510.8 million as compared to approximately $309.4 million at
December 31, 1999. Our backlog consists of original equipment manufacturer, or OEM, customer-released orders that are requested for
delivery within the next six months and distributor orders that are requested for delivery within the next three months. We produce standard
products that may be shipped from inventory within a short time after receipt of an order. Our business has been characterized by a high
percentage of orders with near-term delivery schedules. At times, due to high demand and supply constraints in certain products, lead times
can lengthen, causing an increase in backlog. However, orders constituting our current backlog are cancel able without significant penalty at the
option of the purchaser, thereby decreasing backlog during periods of lower demand. In addition, distributor shipments are subject to price
adjustments, and we defer recognition of revenue on shipments to distributors until the product is resold to the end customer. Historically,
backlog has been a poor predictor of future customer demand. For all of these reasons, backlog as of any particular date should not be used as
apredictor of salesfor any future period.

Effective January 1, 2001, our policy for determining backlog will change from a six-month period for OEM customer-release orders to a
three-month period. We do not expect that this change will have a material effect on our backlog, as our distributor orders accounted for over
98% of our backlog as of December 31, 2000.

Research and Development

Our total research and devel opment activities have focused primarily on general-purpose programmable logic devices and on the associated
development software and hardware. We have developed these related products in paralel to provide software support to customers upon
device introduction. As a result of our research and development efforts, we have introduced a number of new PLD families, such as the
FLEX 10KE, FLEX 10KA, MAX 3000A, MAX 7000A, MAX 7000B, APEX 20K, APEX 20KE, APEX 20KC and ACEX 1K device
families. We have a so redesigned a number of our products to accommodate their manufacture on new wafer fabrication processes. In 2001,
we also released the Quartus 11 development tool, which is our fourth-generation software. Additionally, we typically release new versions of
our proprietary software on a quarterly basis.

Our research and development expenditures were $178.7 million in 2000, $86.1 million in 1999 and $59.9 million in 1998. Excluding a $6.3
million one-time charge for acquired in-process research and development, our research and development expenditures in 2000 were $172.4
million. We have not capitalized research and development or software costs to date. We intend to continue to spend substantial amounts on
research and development in order to continue to develop new products and achieve market acceptance for such products, particularly in light
of the industry pattern of short product life cycles and increasing competition within the CMOS logic market. Even if such goals are
accomplished, we cannot assure you that these products will achieve significant market acceptance. If we are unable to successfully define,
develop and introduce competitive new products, and enhance our existing products, our future operating results would be adversely affected.

Patents and Licenses

We own numerous United States patents and have additional pending United States patent applications on our semiconductor products.
Although our patents and patent applications may have value in discouraging competitive entry into our market sesgment, we cannot assure you
that any valuable new patents will be granted to us, or that our patents will provide meaningful protection from competition. We believe that
our future success will depend primarily upon the technical competence and creative skills of our personnel, rather than on our patents,
licenses, or other proprietary rights.

We have in the past incurred, and in the future may continue to incur, litigation expenses to enforce our intellectual property rights against third
parties. We cannot assure you that any such litigation would be successful or that our patents would be upheld if challenged.



In the normal course of business, we from time to time receive and make inquiries with respect to possible patent infringements. As aresult of
inquiries received from third parties, it may be necessary or desirable for us to obtain licenses relating to one or more of our current or future
products. We cannot assure you that such licenses could be obtained, and, if obtainable, could be obtained on conditions which would not have
amaterial adverse effect on our operating results. In addition, if patent litigation ensued, we cannot assure you that these third parties would
not succeed in obtaining significant monetary damages or an injunction against the manufacture and sale of one or more of our product

families.

Directors and Executive Officers

Our directors and executive officers and their ages are as follows:

Name Position
Rodney Smith......ccccoeveinerenene. Chairman of the Board of Directors
John P. D@aNne .......cccoveveneeeenerceinenns President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
C. Wendell Bergére .... Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
DenisBerlan......ccccoooeeeeevrciencnne Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
Erik Cleage.......ccovmeeenirnericneennne Senior Vice President, Marketing
John R. Fitzhenry ........ccccoeoveeennenn. 51 Vice President, Human Resources
Michael Jacobs.......ccccoveerieceenenne. 41 Senior Vice President, Worldwide Sales
Lance M. LiSSner.......ccoceeevvevenennnne 51 Senior Vice President, Business Development
Nathan Sarkisian........cccceeeeeeeenennee 42 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Charles M. Clough(1).......ccccoerveveneee 72 Director
Michael A. Ellison(2)(3) ....cocovevenne 55 Director
Paul Newhagen (1) .....coccvvevenecrenene 51 Director
Robert W. Reed(3) .....ccocovvevveereernnnnee 54 Director and Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
Deborah D. Rieman........ccccovveuenne 51 Director
William E. Terry(1)(2)....cccovvrervenens 67 Director

(1) Member of Nominating Committee.
(2) Member of Compensation Committee.
(3) Member of Audit Committee.

All directors hold office until the next annual meeting of stockholders or until their successors have been elected and qualified. There are no
family relationships between any of our directors or executive officers.

Rodney Smith has served as our Chairman of the Board of Directors since joining us in November 1983 and as our President and Chief
Executive Officer from November 1983 to November 2000. Prior to November 1983, he held various management positions with Fairchild
Semiconductor Corporation, a semiconductor manufacturer.

John P. Daane has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer since November 2000 and as one of our directors since December
2000. Prior to joining us, Mr. Daane spent 15 years at LS| Logic Corporation, a semiconductor manufacturer, most recently as Executive Vice
President, Communications Products Group.

C. Wendell Bergerejoined usin August 1995 as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. From 1993 to 1995, Mr. Bergére was Specia
Counsel at the law firm of Sheppard, Mullin, Richter & Hampton. From 1982 to 1993, he was Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
of The Perkin-Elmer Corporation, a producer of analytical and life science systems.

Denis M. Berlan joined usin December 1989 as Vice President, Product Engineering and was named Vice President, Operations and Product
Engineering in October 1994. In January 1996, he was named Vice President, Operations. In January 1997, he was named Executive Vice
President and Chief Operating Officer. He was previoudy employed by Advanced Micro Devices, Inc., or AMD, a semiconductor
manufacturer, and by L attice Semiconductor Corporation, a semiconductor manufacturer, in engineering management capacities.



Erik Cleage joined us as International Marketing Manager in February 1986. He became Director, Japan and Asia Pacific Salesin April 1989,
was appointed Vice President, Marketing in August 1990 and Senior Vice President, Marketing in January 1999. Previously, he was employed
by AMD and Fairchild in various positions.

John R. Fitzhenry joined us in May 1995 as Vice President, Human Resources. From February 1983 to May 1995, he was employed by
Apple Computer, Inc., amanufacturer of personal computers, in various human resource management positions.

Michae Jacobsjoined usin January 2000 as Senior Vice President, Worldwide Sales. From April 1997 to January 2000, Mr. Jacobs was Vice
President, North American Sales at Analog Devices, Inc., a semiconductor manufacturer, and from December 1985 to April 1997, he held
various management positions at National Semiconductor Corporation, a semiconductor manufacturer.

Lance M. Lissner joined usin May 1998 as Vice President of Business Development and Investor Relations and was appointed Senior Vice
President, Business Development in November 2000. Prior to that time, Mr. Lissner was a corporate officer of Measurex Corporétion, a
developer of computer-integrated measurement, control and information systems, where he was employed since 1973 and held various
positions in sales, marketing, engineering, and business development.

Nathan Sarkisian joined usin June 1992 as Corporate Controller. He was appointed Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer in
August 1995 and Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in March 1998. Prior to joining us, Mr. Sarkisian held various accounting
and financial positions at Fairchild and at Schlumberger Limited, an oil field services company.

Charles M. Clough has served as one of our directors since August 1997. In August 1997, Mr. Clough retired from his position as Chairman
of the Board of Directors of Wyle Electronics, adistributor of semiconductor products and computer systems. From 1982 to 1997, Mr. Clough
held various management positions at Wyl e Electronics, including President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman. Wyle Electronics was one
of our authorized distributors in the United States prior to its acquisition by Arrow. Prior to joining Wyle Electronics, he had spent 27 years
with Texas I nstruments holding a number of management and executive positions relating to semiconductor operations, including the head of
Bipolar operations, European Semiconductor group and worldwide marketing.

Michae A. Ellison has served as one of our directors since April 1984 and has been a private venture capita investor since November 2000.
From October 1994 to October 2000, Mr. Ellison was the Chief Executive Officer of Steller, Inc., a distributor of electronic parts. From
January 1982 to December 1992, he was a General Partner of Cable & Howse Ventures, a venture capital investment firm.

Paul Newhagen, one of our co-founders, has served as one of our directors since July 1987. In March 1998, Mr. Newhagen retired from his
position as our Vice President, Administration, a position he had held since December 1994. From June 1993 to November 1994, he served as
a consultant to us. From 1983 to 1993, Mr. Newhagen held various management positions with us, including Vice President of Finance and
Administration, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary.

Robert W. Reed has served as one of our directors since October 1994 and as our Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors since January
2001. In 1996, Mr. Reed retired from his position as Senior Vice President of Intel Corporation, a semiconductor manufacturer. From 1983 to
1991, Mr. Reed was Intel’s Chief Financial Officer.

Deborah D. Rieman, Ph.D., has served as one of our directors since May 1996. Dr. Rieman currently manages a private investment fund and
consults to technology start-up companies. From July 1995 to May 1999, Dr. Rieman was the President and Chief Executive Officer of
CheckPoint Software Technologies, Inc., an Internet security software company. Prior to joining CheckPoint, Dr. Rieman held various
executive and marketing positions with Adobe Systems Inc., a computer software company, Sun Microsystems Inc., a computer networking
company, and Xerox Corp., a diversified electronics manufacturer. Dr. Rieman also serves as a director of Corning Inc. and Alchemedia Corp.

William E. Terry has served as one of our directors since August 1994. Mr. Terry is aformer director and Executive Vice President of the
Hewlett-Packard Company, a diversified electronics manufacturing company. In 36 years at Hewlett-Packard, he held a number of senior
management positions, including general manager of Hewlett-Packard's Data Products and Instrument Groups, and subsequently had overall
responsibility for the Measurement Systems Sector. He retired from Hewlett-Packard in November 1993. Mr. Terry also serves as a director of
Key Tronic Corporation.

Employees
As of December 31, 2000, we had 1,947 regular employees. Our success is dependent in large part upon the continued service of our key

management, technical, sales and support employees and on our ability to continue to attract and retain additional qualified employees. The
competition for such employees is intense and the loss of key employees could have an adverse effect on us.



Item 2. Properties.

Our headquarters facility is located in San Jose, California on approximately 25 acres of land, which we purchased in June 1995. The campus
for the headquarters facility currently consists of four interconnected buildings totaling approximately 500,000 square feet. Design, limited
manufacturing, research, marketing and administrative activities are performed in these facilities. We plan to expand our headquarters facility
by constructing a fifth building totaling approximately 135,000 square feet and a multi-level garage totaling approximately 260,000 square
feet. We expect to commence construction of the multi-level garage in the first quarter of 2001, followed by construction of the fifth building.
In 1998, we opened our 62,000 square foot design and test engineering facility in Penang, Malaysia and, in July 2000, we began construction
of a 178,000 square foot facility on adjacent land. Both properties are situated on land leased on a long-term basis from the Penang
Development Corporation. We also lease on a short-term basis office facilities for our domestic and international sales management offices and
our European Technology Center (UK), Toronto Technology Center and Ottawa Technology Center. We believe that our existing facilities and
planned future expansions are adequate for our current and foreseeabl e future needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are a party to lawsuits and may in the future become a party to lawsuits involving various types of claims, including, but not limited to,
unfair competition and intellectual property matters. Legal proceedings tend to be unpredictable and costly and may be affected by events
outside of our control. We cannot assure you that litigation will not have an adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.
Our major litigation matters as of December 31, 2000 are described below.

In June 1993, Xilinx, Inc. sued us for monetary damages and injunctive relief based on our alleged infringement of certain patents held by
Xilinx. In June 1993, we sued Xilinx for monetary damages and injunctive relief based on Xilinx's alleged infringement of certain patents held
by us. In April 1995, we filed a separate lawsuit against Xilinx in Delaware, Xilinx’s state of incorporation, seeking monetary damages and
injunctive relief based on Xilinx’s aleged infringement of one of our patents. In May 1995, Xilinx counter-claimed against us in Delaware,
asserting defenses and seeking monetary damages and injunctive relief based on our aleged infringement of certain patents held by Xilinx.
Subsequently, the Delaware case was transferred to California. In October 1998, both parties filed motions for summary judgment with respect
to certain issues in the first two cases regarding infringement or non-infringement and validity or invalidity of the patents at issue in the
respective cases. In our suit, the court granted that one of our patentsis invalid, granted that one patent is not infringed, and granted another
patent is not literally infringed but denied non-infringement under the doctrine of equivalence. In October and November 2000, Xilinx's suit
went to trial and Xilinx withdrew its claim against our MAX 5000, MAX 7000 and MAX 9000 family products. Upon completion of trial, the
jury rendered a verdict that our FLEX 8000 family products infringe the two Xilinx patents and that the patents are valid. We have filed post
trial motions to overturn the verdicts or to seek a new trial. In a press release dated November 17, 2000, Xilinx announced it will seek an
injunction against usto stop all shipments of our “FLEX product” and our “derivative programmable | ogic devices” that Xilinx claimsinfringe
the two Xilinx patents. The court ordered continued mediation following the jury verdict. Due to the nature of the litigation with Xilinx and
because the Xilinx lawsuit has not yet reached the damagestrial stage, our management cannot estimate the total expense, the possible loss, if
any, or the range of loss that we may ultimately incur in connection with the verdict. Our management cannot ensure that Xilinx will not
succeed in obtaining significant monetary damages or an i njunction against the manufacture and sale of our products, including but not limited
to our FLEX 8000 family products, or succeed in invalidating our other patents. Although we cannot make any assurances as to the results of
these cases, we believe that the jury verdict isin error and intend to pursue our post trial motions with the court to reverse the verdict and will
file an appeal if our motions are denied. We continue to believe that we have meritorious defenses to the claims asserted in the Xilinx suit and
intend to continue to defend ourselves vigorously in this matter. The foregoing is a forward-looking statement subject to the risks and
uncertainties of the lega proceedings, including events occurring during the post triadl motions and appeals outside of our control and
unpredictability as to its ultimate outcome.

In May 2000, we sued Xilinx, seeking monetary damages and injunctive relief based on Xilinx’s alleged infringement of certain patents held
by us. In July 2000, Xilinx filed a counterclaim against us aleging infringement of certain patents held by Xilinx. The court hasissued an order
setting the claim construction hearing for our claimsin April 2001. Due to the nature of the litigation with Xilinx and because the lawsuit is
till in the pre-trial stage, our management cannot estimate the total expenses, the possible loss, if any, or the range of loss that may ultimately
be incurred in connection with the counterclaim allegations. Although we cannot make any assurances as to the results of this case, we believe
that we have meritorious defenses to Xilinx's counterclaim and intend to pursue our claims and defend ourselves vigorously in this matter. The
foregoing is aforward-looking statement subject to risks and uncertainties of the legal proceeding, including events occurring during litigation
proceedings outside of our control and unpredictability asto its ultimate outcome.

In November 2000, Xilinx filed a complaint against us with the International Trade Commission, or ITC, to bar us from importing or selling
products into the United States that Xilinx asserts infringe three Xilinx patents not previously asserted. Xilinx also requested a permanent
cease and desist order and other penalties, as the ITC may deem appropriate. The ITC has commenced an investigation based on Xilinx's
complaint. Due to the nature of the litigation with Xilinx and because the lawsuit is till in the pre-trial stage, our management cannot estimate
the total expenses, the possible loss, if any, or the range of loss that may ultimately be incurred in connection with the claim allegations.
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Although we cannot make any assurances as to the results of this case, we believe that we have meritorious defenses to Xilinx's claims and
intend to defend ourselves vigorously in this matter. The foregoing is a forward-looking statement subject to risks and uncertainties of the legal
proceeding, including events occurring during litigation proceedings outside of our control and unpredictability asto its ultimate outcome.

In August 1994, Advanced Micro Devices, Inc., or AMD, sued us seeking monetary damages and injunctive relief based on our alleged
infringement of certain patents held by AMD. In September 1994, we answered the complaint asserting that we are licensed to use the patents
which AMD claims are infringed and filed a counterclaim against AMD alleging infringement of certain patents held by us. In October 1997,
upon completion of trials bifurcated from the infringement claims, the District Court ruled that we are licensed under all patents asserted by
AMD in the suit. In December 1997, AMD filed a Notice of Appea of the District Court’s rulings. In April 1999, the Federal Circuit Court
ruled in AMD’s favor on its appeal, finding that we are not licensed to AMD’s patents, and remanded the case back to the District Court for
further proceedings. In 1999, L attice Semiconductor Corporation entered into an agreement with AMD that includes assuming both the claims
against us and the claims against AMD and has replaced AMD in the suit with Vantis, awholly owned subsidiary of Lattice. Due to the nature
of the litigation, our management cannot estimate the total expense, the possible loss, if any, or the range of loss that may ultimately be
incurred in connection with the allegations. We cannot ensure that Lattice will not succeed in obtaining significant monetary damages or an
injunction against the manufacture and sal e of the Classic™, MAX 7000, FLEX 8000, MAX 9000 and FLEX 10K product families, or succeed
in invalidating any of our patents remaining in the suit. Although we cannot make any assurances as to the results of this case, we intend to
pursue our claims and defend ourselves vigoroudy in this matter. The foregoing is a forward-looking statement subject to risks and
uncertainties of thelegal proceeding, including the events occurring during litigation proceedings outside of our control and unpredictability as
to its ultimate outcome.

In May 2000, we sued L attice seeking monetary damages and injunctive relief based on Lattice's aleged infringement of certain patents held
by us. In July 2000, Lattice filed a counterclaim against us alleging infringement of certain patents held by Lattice. Due to the nature of the
litigation with Lattice and because the lawsuit is till in the pre-trial stage, our management cannot estimate the total expenses, the possible
loss, if any, or the range of loss that may ultimately be incurred in connection with the counterclaim allegations. Although we cannot make any
assurances as to the results of this case, we intend to pursue our claims and defend ourselves vigoroudy in this matter. The foregoing is a
forward-looking statement subject to risks and uncertainties of the legal proceeding, including events occurring during litigation proceedings
outside of our control and unpredictability as to its ultimate outcome.

In November 1999, we sued Clear Logic Inc. alleging that Clear Logic is unlawfully appropriating our registered mask work technology in
violation of the federa mask work statute and that Clear Logic has unlawfully interfered with our relationships and contracts with our
customers. The lawsuit seeks compensatory and punitive damages and an injunction to stop Clear Logic from unlawfully using our mask work
technology and from interfering with our customers. Clear Logic has answered the complaint by denying that it is infringing our mask work
technology and denying that it has unlawfully interfered with our relationships and contracts with our customers. Clear Logic has aso filed a
counterclaim against us for unfair competition under California law alleging that we have made false statements to our customers regarding
Clear Logic. Dueto the nature of the litigation with Clear Logic and because the lawsuit is till in the pre-trial stage, our management cannot
estimate the total expenses, the possible loss, if any, or the range of loss that may ultimately be incurred in connection with the counterclaim
alegations. Although we cannot make any assurances as to the results of this case, we intend to pursue our claims and defend ourselves
vigorously in this matter. The foregoing is a forward-looking statement subject to risks and uncertainties of the legal proceeding, including
events occurring during litigation proceedings outside of our control and unpredictability asto its ultimate outcome.

Item 4. Submission of Mattersto a Vote of Security Holders.

None.
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PART 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.

The textual portion of the section entitled “About Your Investment” and the section entitled “Corporate Directory” in our 2000 Annual Report
to Stockhol ders for the year ended December 31, 2000, or the 2000 Annual Report, are incorporated herein by reference.

We believe factors such as quarter-to-quarter variances in financial results, announcements of new products, new orders and order rate
variations by us or our competitors could cause the market price of our common stock to fluctuate substantially. In addition, the stock prices
for many high technology companies experience large fluctuations, which are often unrelated to the operating performance of the specific
companies. Broad market fluctuations, as well as general economic conditions such as a recessionary period or high interest rates, may
adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.
The section entitled “ Selected Consolidated Financial Data” in our 2000 Annual Report is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Consolidated Financial Condition and Consolidated Results of Operation, aswell as
information contained elsewhere in this Report, contains statements that constitute “ forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These statements include statements
regarding theintent, belief or current expectations of us, our directorsor our officers with respect to, among other things: (1) the ability of our
product offerings to compete in the AS C market, (2) the competitive advantages of our products, (3) the outcome of current litigation in which
we are involved and (4) the expected success of our new product lines. The success of our business operationsis, in turn, dependent on factors
such as market acceptance of our current and future products, our ability to timely and continually introduce new products and make our
current products better, the ability of our subcontractors to manufacture, assemble, test and ship products efficiently and on a timely basis, our
ability to obtain sufficient quantities of wafers to meet demand, general competitive conditions within the semiconductor industry and general
economic conditions as set forth under “ Future Events; Risk Factors” below and el sewherein this Report. Forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties and actual results may differ materially from those projected in the
forward-looking statements as a result of various factors.

Overview

We design, manufacture and market high-performance, high-density, programmable logic devices and associated computer aided engineering
logic devel opment tools. Programmable logic devices are semiconductor chips that may be programmed on-site, using software tools that run
on personal computers or engineering workstations. User benefits include ease of use, lower risk and fast time-to-market. Our CM OS-based
programmabl e logic devices address high-speed, high-density and low-power applications in the telecommunications, data communications,
computer peripheral and industrial markets. FLEX and APEX products are our SRAM-based line of embedded array programmable logic
devices, and MAX products are our line of EEPROM - and EPROM -based macrocell programmabl e logic devices.

We classify our productsinto the following categories. All prior year data have been restated to reflect the following compositions:

B New products consist of APEX 20KE, APEX 20KC, MAX 7000B, ACEX 1K, Excalibur families

B Mainstream productsinclude MAX 7000A, MAX 3000A, FLEX 6000, FLEX 10KA, FLEX 10KE, APEX 20K families

B Mature and other products include Classic, MAX 5000, MAX 7000, MAX 7000S, MAX 9000, FLEX 8000, FLEX 10K and
FLASHIogic® families, Tools, MPLDs, configuration devices and Northwest Logic design services

In general, customers prefer products with lower supply voltages because they use less power and dissipate less heat, normally resulting in

lower overall system cost. Lower supply voltages result from more advanced fabrication processes and yield higher performance at a lower
cost. Thus, supply voltage correl ates with product maturity: lower supply voltages represent newer products.
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Results of Operations

SALES | Saleswere $1,376.8 million in 2000, $836.6 million in 1999 and $654.3 million in 1998. Sales increased 64.6% in 2000 from 1999
and 27.9% in 1999 from 1998. Increases in sales, in both years, were primarily due to higher unit salesin all product categories. The increases
in sales were partially offset by decreases in average unit selling prices.

Sales of New products, which began shipping during the fourth quarter of 1999, were $52.1 million in 2000 and marginal in 1999. Sales of
Mainstream products were $656.1 million, 158.8% higher than 1999 sales of $253.6 million. Sales of Mature and other products were $668.6
million, 14.7% higher than 1999 sales of $583.0 million.

As a percentage of sales, New products, mostly introduced in 2000, represented 3.8% of sales in 2000. Mainstream products represented
47.6% of salesin 2000 as compared to 30.3% in 1999 and 12.1% in 1998. Mature and other products represented 48.6% of sales in 2000 as
compared to 69.7% in 1999 and 87.9% in 1998.

Our New and Mainstream products have been developed and introduced to the marketplace over the last several years. These products have
similar or improved features and comparable or higher densities than their predecessors, but advanced process technology enables us to
produce these products at a lower cost than previous generations of products. Consistent with their lower cost structure, we have priced these
products at a significant discount to our more mature products in order to stimulate demand and broaden the appeal of programmable logic. As
aresult, we experienced a shift in customer demand to our newer, lower-priced offerings from the more mature products. New and Mainstream
products were 51.4% of total salesin 2000 as compared to 30.3% in 1999 and 12.1% in 1998.

Our management believes that lower prices on our newer product families will enable our product offering to compete more favorably with
gate array and standard cell technologies, which represent significant market opportunities. During 2000, additiona unit sales more than offset
the lower selling prices and our management believes that over time this will continue, but we cannot assure you that this will occur. In 2000,
unit sales of Mainstream products increased 284.6%, while average unit selling prices decreased 32.7%.

In October 1999, we sold to Cypress Semiconductor Corporation the exclusive right to manufacture, market and sell our MAX 5000
programmabl e logic device product family and our equity interest in Cypress Semiconductor (Texas), Inc. We recorded a pre-tax gain of $10.3
million. The sale of the MAX 5000 family did not materially affect our fiscal year 2000 revenues. Excluding the MAX 5000 product family,
sales grew 66.5% in 2000 and 29.8% in 1999.

Year over Year Sales Growth by Product Category:

Years Ended December 31,

2000 1999
New N/A N/A
Mainstream 158.8% 221.5%
Mature and other 14.7% 1.3%
Total 64.6% 27.9%

Customer Sectors

During 2000, we experienced strong sa es in the communications market segment driven primarily by the networking and tel ecommunications
sectors. The communications market segment represented 67.2% of our business in 2000 as compared to 66.3% in 1999 and 64.0% in 1998.
The electronic data processing market segment was 17.3% of sales in 2000 as compared to 15.8% in 1999 and 17.4% in 1998. The industrial
market segment was 10.4% percent of sales in 2000 as compared to 11.4% in 1999 and 12.2% in 1998. The consumer market segment was
2.0% in 2000 as compared to 3.0% in 1999 and 2.8% in 1998, and other markets were 3.1% in 2000 as compared to 3.5% in both 1999 and
1998. Our management believes that future revenue growth will be driven by product demand in the communications market segment, but we
cannot assure you that thiswill occur.

Geographic Areas
North America sales were $786.8 million in 2000, 67.6% higher than 1999 sales of $469.4 million. International sales included sales in
Europe, Japan and Asia Pacific and were $590.0 million in 2000, 60.7% higher than $367.2 million in 1999. During 2000, salesin Europe were

$300.2 million, an increase of 87.6% from $160.0 million in 1999. In Japan, sales were $206.9 million, an increase of 30.6% from $158.5
million in 1999 and sales in Asia Pacific were $82.9 million, an increase of 70.1% from $48.7 million in 1999.
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In 1999, North America sales grew 30.8% from 1998, while salesin Europe grew 7.1%, Japan grew 33.9% and Asia Pacific grew 75.9%. Sales
for 1999 in total grew 27.9% primarily due to strength in North American and Japanese networking and telecommuni cations sectors.

As a percentage of total sales, salesin North America, Europe and Asia Pacific increased, while sales in Japan declined in 2000 compared to
1999. North America sales increased to 57.1% of sales from 56.1% in 1999 and 54.9% in 1998, Europe increased to 21.8% from 19.1% in
1999 and was 22.8% in 1998, Asia Pacific increased to 6.0% from 5.8% in 1999 and 4.2% in 1998, while Japan decreased to 15.1% from
19.0% in 1999 and 18.1% in 1998.

Year over Year Sales Growth by Geographic Area

Years Ended December 31,

2000 1999
North America 67.6% 30.8%
Europe 87.6% 7.1%
Japan 30.6% 33.9%
AsiaPacific 70.1% 75.9%
Total International 60.7% 24.3%
Tota 64.6% 27.9%

Major items in the statements of operations, expressed as a percentage of sales, were asfollows:

Years Ended December 31,

2000 1999 1998
Cost of sales 33.9% 36.0% 38.1%
Gross margin 66.1% 64.0% 61.9%
Total research and development expenses 13.0% 10.3% 9.1%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 15.2% 17.1% 17.3%
Income from operations 37.9% 36.6% 35.5%
Gain on sale of WaferTech 12.9% - -
Interest and other income, net 3.4% 4.4% 1.9%
Provision for income taxes 17.9% 13.3% 12.1%
Net income 36.1% 26.8% 23.6%

GROSS MARGIN | Gross margin, as a percentage of sales, was 66.1% in 2000, 64.0% in 1999 and 61.9% in 1998. The increases in gross
margin were primarily attributable to cost reductions as aresult of manufacturing process improvements.

Yields on newer, lower voltage products continued to improve for the year ended December 31, 2000. This includes improvements in the
APEX 20K, APEX 20KE, FLEX 10KE and FLEX 10K A product families. We continue to spend a significant amount of financial resources to
improve production yields on both new and established products. Difficulties in production yields can occur when we begin production of new
products, transition to new processes or when our principal wafer supplier, TSMC, moves production of a product from one manufacturing
plant to another. These difficulties can potentially result in significantly higher costs and lower product availability. For example, from the
fourth quarter of 1999 through the first half of 2000, process control issues associated with WaferTech’'s volume ramp up resulted in low die
yields on FLEX 10KA and FLEX 10KE products leading to reduced product availability in these families. As a result, we were unable to
support distributor stocking at desired levels and in some cases could not meet end customer demand. Our management expects to continue to
introduce new and established products using new process technologies and may encounter similar start-up difficulties during the transition to
such process technologies. Further, production throughput times vary considerably among our wafer suppliers, and we may experience delays
from time to time in processing some of our products which also may result in higher costs and lower product availability.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES | Research and development expenses for the year ended December 31, 2000 were
$178.7 million, or 13.0% of sales, compared to $86.1 million, or 10.3% of salesin 1999 and $59.9 million, or 9.1% of salesin 1998. For the
year ended December 31, 2000, excluding the $6.3 million one-time acquired in-process research and development charge, research and
development expenses were $172.4 million, or 12.5% percent of sales. Historicaly, the level of research and development expenses as a
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percentage of sales has fluctuated in part due to the timing of the purchase of masks and wafers used in the development of new products. We
expect that, in the long term, research and development expenses will increase in absolute dollars primarily due to our efforts to develop new
products. Research and devel opment expenses include expenditures for labor, masks, prototype wafers, the amortization of deferred stock-
based compensation resulting from acquisitions, and expenses for the development of process technology, new packages, and software to
support new products and design environments.

Excluding the one-time charge, research and development expenses increased $86.3 million, or 100.2% in 2000 and $26.2 million, or 43.7% in
1999. The increases in absolute dollars were primarily a result of increased headcount, additional spending on masks, prototype wafers,
package development and the development of our Quartus software and Excalibur embedded processor solutions. During 2000, we recorded
deferred stock-based compensation of $41.3 million for the acquisitions of DesignPRO Inc. and Right Track CAD Inc. which is being
amortized to research and development expense over a period of two to four years. Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation
included in research and development expenses was $8.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2000.

We expect to continue to make significant investments in the development of APEX 20K, APEX 20KE, APEX 20KC, Quartus software,
Excalibur embedded processor solutions and future products. During the first quarter of 1999, we shipped APEX 20K, a new family of
devices, and Quartus, our new fourth generation software design tool. During the fourth quarter of 1999, we began shipping our APEX 20KE
family of devices. Therollout of the 1.8-volt APEX 20KE product family progressed further during the second quarter of 2000, during which
time we began shipping four new devices including the APEX EP20K1500E, the highest density programmable device available in
commercia quantities. The APEX 20KE family offers advanced features over the APEX 20K family including lower power consumption,
faster performance, expanded 1/O support and smaller die sizes. APEX 20K and APEX 20KE devices utilize a new architecture for
programmable logic and address higher density designs. APEX 20K and APEX 20KE devices are supported exclusively by our Quartus
software. Also during the second quarter of 2000, we announced our new Excalibur embedded processor solutions. Excalibur solutions
combine programmable logic, memory and a processor core, allowing users to integrate an entire system on a single programmable logic
device. These solutions provide programmable flexibility and system-level integration while bringing advanced processor technology to the
broad marketplace. Furthermore, during the fourth quarter of 2000 and the first quarter of 2001, we released upgraded versions of our Quartus
software which provide improved place-and-route technology and enhanced device support. Our management expects APEX 20K and
APEX 20KE devices, Quartus software and Excalibur solutions to be successful in the marketplace; however, the commercia success of these
products depends on market acceptance of the use of APEX 20K and APEX 20KE devices in high-density designs, as well as the acceptance
of the Quartus design software and Excalibur solutions. We cannot assure you that any of our products will achieve market acceptance.

We also continue to focus our efforts on the development of new programmable logic chips, related development software and hardware and
advanced semiconductor wafer fabrication processes. However, we cannot assure you that we will accomplish our goals in the devel opment
and subsequent introduction of new products and manufacturing processes. Also, we cannot assure you that our new products will achieve
market acceptance, that the new manufacturing processes will be successful, or that our suppliers will provide us with the quaity and quantity
of wafers and materials that we require. We must continue to develop and introduce new products in a timely manner to help counter the
semiconductor industry’s historical trend of declining prices as products mature.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES | Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December
31, 2000 were $210.0 million, or 15.2% of sales, compared to $143.2 million, or 17.1% of salesin 1999 and $113.2 million, or 17.3% of sales
in 1998. Although total selling, general and administrative expenses increased, they decreased as a percentage of sales because of strong
revenue growth. Selling, general and administrative expenses include salary expenses related to field sales, marketing and administrative
personnel, commissions and incentive expenses, advertising and promotional expenditures, and legal expenses. Selling, general and
administrative expenses also include costs related to the direct sales force and field application engineers who work in over forty field saes
offices worldwide and stimulate demand by assisting customers in the use and proper selection of our products. The customers then work with
our distributors for order fulfillment and logistical requirements, as over 95% of our sales are made through distributors. Our management
intends to continue to increase sales resources in markets and regions where it anticipates this will increase sal es, enhance competitive position
or improve customer service.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $66.8 million, or 46.6% in 2000 and $30.0 million, or 26.5% in 1999. The increases in
absolute dollars were mainly driven by increased headcount for sales, marketing and administration personnel, higher advertising and legal
expenses, and higher commission and incentive expenses associated with increased sales.

IN-PROCESS RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT | During 2000, we recorded a non-recurring charge of $6.3 million to in-process
research and development related to the purchase of DesignPRO and Right Track. We determined this non-recurring charge using valuation
techniques generally used by appraisers in the high-technology industry. We immediately expensed this non-recurring charge in the period of
acquisition because technological feasibility had not been established and no alternative use had been identified. See Note 5.
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INCOME FROM OPERATIONS | Income from operations was $521.2 million, or 37.9% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2000
compared to $306.0 million, or 36.6% of salesin 1999 and $231.8 million, or 35.5% of salesin 1998. The year over year increases in operating
income, as a percentage of sales, were primarily due to improvements in gross margin and a decrease in selling, general and administrative
expenses, partially offset by increased research and development expenses.

INTEREST AND OTHER INCOME, NET | Interest and other income was $46.1 million, or 3.4% of sales for the year ended December 31,
2000 compared to $37.1 million, or 4.4% of salesin 1999 and $12.3 million, or 1.9% of salesin 1998. For the year ended December 31, 1999,
interest and other income included a one-time pre-tax gain of $10.3 million from the sale of the MAX 5000 family and our equity interest in
Cypress Semiconductor (Texas), Inc. Excluding the one-time gain, interest and other income was $26.8 million, or 3.2% of sales. Excluding
the one-time gain, the increase from 1999 to 2000, in both absolute dollars and as a percentage of sales, was primarily due to the increase in
interest income related to higher investment balances and higher interest rates. Interest and other income consists mainly of interest income on
investments in high-quality fixed income securities.

In 1998, interest and other income included interest expense related to the convertible subordinated notes issued in June 1995 that was
comprised of interest expense and amortization of debt issuance costs, net of capitalized interest related to the construction of our new
headquarters. In June 1998, the subordinated notes were converted into common stock resulting in a decrease in interest expense during that
year. No interest expense has been incurred since the conversion.

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES | Our effective tax rate was 33.2% in 2000 and 32.5% in 1999 and 1998. Excluding the one-time gain
on the sale of WaferTech, which was taxed at our marginal rate, our effective tax rate for 2000 was 31.0%. The reduction of the effective tax
rate, excluding the one-time gain, primarily resulted from a change in the geographic source of income.

EQUITY INVESTMENT | In June 1996, we formed WaferTech, LLC, ajoint venture company, with TSMC and several other partners to
build and operate a wafer manufacturing plant in Camas, Washington. In return for a $140.4 million cash investment, we received an 18%
equity ownership in WaferTech and certain obligations and rights to procure up to 27% of WaferTech's output at market prices. In January
1999, we purchased from Analog Devices, Inc. an additional 5% equity ownership interest in WaferTech for approximately $37.5 million,
increasing our ownership interest to 23%. This increased investment in WaferTech provided us with additiona obligations and rights to
procure up to 35% of WaferTech's future output. In October 1999, the partners in WaferTech contributed $100.0 million in additional equity to
support capital expansion plans and working capital requirements of WaferTech. Our share of that contribution was $23.0 million; we
maintained our same ownership interest and rights to acquire WaferTech's output. We accounted for our investment under the equity method
based on our ability to exercise significant influence over WaferTech’s operating and financial policies.

On December 27, 2000, we sold our 23% ownership interest in WaferTech to a subsidiary of TSMC for $350.4 million in cash. The one-time
pre-tax gain on the sale of WaferTech was $178.1 million. For the year ended December 31, 2000, our equity in the loss of WaferTech was $1.4
million as compared to aloss of $7.6 millionin 1999 and $10.4 million in 1998.

WaferTech began production of silicon wafers in October 1998 and achieved volume production in 1999. In past years, WaferTech had
experienced lower than forecast production yields resulting in lower than forecast output. During the year ended December 31, 2000,
WaferTech's production volumes and yields increased over the prior year and met our targeted levels. Although we sold our equity interest in
WaferTech in December 2000, we expect to continue utilizing WaferTech as one of our suppliers of silicon wafers.

FUTURE RESULTS; RISKS FACTORS | In addition to other information contained elsewhere in this Report, the following important
factors, among others, have affected and, in the future, could affect, our actual results of operations and could cause our actual results to differ
materially from those expressed in forward-looking statements made by us.

Our financial results depend on our ability to compete successfully in the highly competitive semiconductor industry.

Our industry is intensely competitive. Future operating results will depend on our ability to develop, manufacture and sell complex
semiconductor components and programming software that offer customers greater value than solutions offered by competing vendors. We
may not succeed in devel oping, manufacturing or selling competitive products. We are developing programmable chips for applications that
are presently served by other ASIC vendors. Many of these vendors have substantially greater financial, technical and marketing resources
than we do and have well-established market positions and a solution that has been proven technically feasible and economically competitive
over several decades. We cannot assure you that we will be successful in displacing ASIC vendors in the targeted applications and densities.
Furthermore, other programmable logic vendors are targeting these applications and may be successful in securing market share from us.
Moreover, our customers increasingly use standard cell technologies to achieve greater integration in their systems; this may not only impede
our effortsto penetrate the ASIC market, but may also displace our products in the applications that we presently serve.
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Our future success depends on our ability to define, develop and sell new products.

As asemiconductor company, we operate in a dynamic market characterized by rapid product obsol escence. We continue to focus our efforts
on developing new programmable logic chips, related development software and hardware and advanced semiconductor wafer fabrication
processes. We cannot assure you that we will be able to continue to develop and introduce new products and manufacturing processes or that
our products and processes will achieve market acceptance or be successful. If we do not successfully define, develop and introduce
competitive new products and enhance existing products in response to both evolving demands of the marketplace and competitive product
offerings, our future operating results could be adversely affected.

e depend on independent subcontractors, located primarily in Asia, for the supply and quality of our finished silicon wafers.

We depend significantly upon subcontractors to manufacture silicon wafers and assemble, test and ship product to end customers. We a so
depend on all of our subcontractors, and especialy our principa foundry partner, TSMC, to improve process technologiesin a timely manner
to enhance our product designs and cost structure. Our success depends, in part, on TSMC's ability to remain successful in its highly
competitive industry. Their inability to do so could have a severe negative impact on us. The vast mgjority of our products are manufactured
and shipped to customers by subcontractors located in Asia, principally Hong Kong, Japan, Korea, Malaysia, the Philippines and Taiwan.
Disruptions or adverse supply conditions arising from market conditions, political strife, labor disruptions and other factors could adversely
affect our future results. Market demand for silicon wafers increased significantly through the third quarter of 2000, while supply of such
wafersincreased at amuch slower rate. Thisresulted in afirmer pricing environment, less respons veness to requests for expedited delivery by
wafer suppliers, and in some cases, unsatisfied demand. In general, the lead time to increase market wafer supply by building additional wafer
fabrication facilities is approximately two years and in periods where demand for wafers increases rapidly for a prolonged period, market
shortages tend to occur. We believe that under circumstances of wafer scarcity it isimportant to have close business relationships with wafer
suppliers in order to receive the desired quantity of product. We believe that we enjoy close working relationships with our principa wafer
supplier, TSMC. In the latter half of 2000, business conditions changed. Our management no longer believes demand exceeds the foundry
industry’s ability to supply silicon wafers. Our management further believes that the foundry’s ability to supply our desired quantity of silicon
wafers will remain through at least the first half of 2001. However, we cannot assure you that we will succeed in securing our total desired
output from TSMC or that the possibility of future wafer scarcity will not impair or prevent any future growth of our business.

Natural or man-made disasters, normal process fluctuations and variances in manufacturing yields could have a severe negative impact on our
operating capabilities. For example, in September 1999, amajor earthquake struck Taiwan resulting in widespread physical damage and loss of
life. The earthquake halted wafer fabrication production at our primary vendor, TSMC, for severa days and then only limited production
began. Nearly two weeks passed before full production resumed, and a portion of the inventory in the production process was scrapped as a
result of damage incurred during the earthquake. We have sought to diversify our operating risk by obtaining silicon wafers manufactured by
WaferTech, located in Camas, Washington. WaferTech began production of silicon wafers in October 1998 and achieved volume production in
1999. In past quarters, Wafer Tech had experienced lower than forecast production yields resulting in lower than forecast output. During 2000,
WaferTech's production volumes and yields increased over prior periods and met our targeted levels. Although we sold our equity interest in
WaferTech in December 2000, we expect to continue utilizing Wafer Tech as one of our suppliers of silicon wafers. See also “Manufacturing —
Wafer Supply” in Part | of this Report for additional factors related to wafer supply that may affect our operating results.

e depend on independent subcontractors for the assembly and testing of our semiconductor products.

Although our assembly and other subcontractors have not recently experienced any serious work stoppages, the economic, social and political
situations in countries where certain subcontractors are located are unpredictable and can be volatile. Any political strife, prolonged work
stoppages or other inability to manufacture and assemble our products would have a material adverse effect on our operating results.

We may be unable to adequately protect our intellectual property rights and may face significant future litigation expenses.

We own numerous patents and patent applications and have technology licensing agreements giving us rights to design, manufacture and
package products using certain patents owned by others. We cannot assure you that our intellectual property rights will provide meaningful
protection from competition or that we will rely on such rightsin developing additiona products. We may be unable to adequately protect our
intellectual property rights and may face significant future litigation expenses. We have in the past incurred, and in the future may continue to
incur, litigation expenses to enforce our intellectual property rights against third parties. We cannot assure you that any such litigation would be
successful or that our patents would be upheld if challenged.

In the normal course of business, we from time to time receive and make inquiries with respect to possible patent infringements. As aresult of
inquiries received from third parties, it may be necessary or desirable for us to obtain licenses relating to one or more of our current or future
products. We cannot assure you that such licenses could be obtained, and, if obtainable, could be obtained on conditions which would not have
amaterial adverse effect on our operating results. In addition, if patent litigation ensued, we cannot assure you that these third parties would
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not succeed in obtaining significant monetary damages or an injunction against the manufacture and sale of one or more of our product
families.

The results of present litigation could adversely affect our operating results.

We are a party to lawsuits and may in the future become a party to lawsuits involving various types of claims, including, but not limited to,
unfair competition and intellectual property matters. Legal proceedings tend to be unpredictable and costly and may be affected by events
outside of our control. Thereis no assurance that litigation will not have an adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations. Our
major litigation matters are described under Item 3 and Note 13.

We depend on international sales for a significant portion of our revenue.

During each of the last three years, international sales constituted nearly half of our total sales. Risks related to our foreign operations include
government regulation of exports, tariffs and other potential trade barriers, adverse changes in tax laws, freight costs or interruptions in air
transportation, reduced protection for intellectua property rights in some countries, and generally longer receivable collection periods. Our
business is also subject to the risks associated with the imposition of |egislation and regulations relating specifically to the import or export of
semiconductor products. We cannot predict whether quotas, duties, taxes or other charges or restrictions will be imposed by the United States
or other countries upon the importation or exportation of our products in the future or what, if any, effect such actions would have on our
financia condition and results of operations.

Our financial results are affected by the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry.

The semiconductor industry is highly cyclical. In the past, the semiconductor industry has been subject to significant downturns as aresult of
diminished demand for semiconductor products, general reductions in semiconductor inventory levels by customers, excess production
capacity and accelerated declines in average selling prices. If these or other conditions in the semiconductor industry occur in the future, there
could be an adverse effect on our operating results.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate.
Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate in the future as a result of a number of factors, including:

The cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry

The cyclical nature of demand for our customers’ products

General economic conditions in the countries where we sell our products

Price competition

Thetiming of our and our competitors' new product introductions

Product obsol escence

The scheduling, rescheduling and cancellation of large orders by our customers

Our abhility to develop new process technol ogies and achieve volume production at the foundries of TSMC, Sharp or WaferTech
Changes in manufacturing yields

Adverse movements in exchange rates, interest rates or tax rates

The availability of adequate supply commitments from our wafer foundries and assembly and test subcontractors

Our future success depends on our ability to successfully compete with other technology firms in attracting and retaining key technical and
management personnel.

Our future success dependsin large part upon the continued service of our key management, technical, sales and support employees and on our
ability to continue to attract and retain additional qualified employees. The competition for such employees is intense and the loss of key
employees could have an adverse effect on our operating results.

Our stock price may be subject to significant volatility.

In recent years, the stock market has experienced extreme price volatility and the price of our common stock has been subject to wide
fluctuations. The overall stock market, the prices of semiconductor stocks in general and the price of our stock may continue to fluctuate
greatly. We believe that factors such as quarter-to-quarter variances in financial results, announcements of new products, new orders and order
rate variations by us or our competitors could cause the market price of our common stock to fluctuate substantially. In addition, the stock
prices for many high technology companies experience large fluctuations, which are often unrelated to the operating performance of the
specific companies. Broad market fluctuations, aswell as general economic conditions such as arecessionary period or high interest rates, may
adversdly affect the market price of our common stock.
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NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS | In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, or SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 133
establishes standards for accounting and reporting on derivative instruments for periods beginning after June 15, 2000. SFAS No. 133 requires
that all derivative instruments be recognized in the balance sheet as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value. Furthermore, SFAS
No. 133 requires current recognition in earnings of changes in the fair value of derivative instruments depending on the intended use of the
derivative and the resulting designation. In June 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 138, “ Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities - An Amendment of SFAS No. 133.” SFAS No. 138 amends the accounting and reporting standards for certain derivatives and
hedging activities. Our adoption of SFAS No. 133, which became effective January 1, 2001, will not have a material effect on our financia
statements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

OPERATING ACTIVITIES | During 2000, our operating activities generated net cash of $550.4 million, which was primarily attributable to
net income of $496.9 million adjusted by non-cash items including an increase in income taxes payable of $240.4 million, an increase in
deferred income on sales to distributors of $232.6 million, an increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $73.4 million, depreciation
and amortization of $40.1 million, amortization of deferred stock-based compensation of $9.8 million, a decrease in other assets of $9.4
million and the one-time write-off of $6.3 million for acquired in-process research and development. These items were partialy offset by an
increase in inventories of $209.3 million, an increase in deferred income taxes of $93.5 million and an increase in accounts receivable of $78.8
million. Cash from operating activities was also offset by the gain on the sale of WaferTech of $178.1 million. Total cash proceeds related to
the WaferTech sale of $350.4 million was included as a cash inflow under investing activities.

During 1999, our operating activities generated net cash of $402.8 million, which was primarily attributable to net income of $224.0 million
adjusted by non-cash items including an increase in income taxes payable of $76.4 million, an increase in deferred income on sales to
distributors of $66.4 million, an increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $33.7 million, depreciation and amortization of $29.4
million, a decrease in other assets of $19.2 million, equity in loss of WaferTech of $7.6 million and a decrease in inventories of $5.4 million.
These items were partidly offset by an increase in accounts receivable of $34.0 million, an increase in deferred income taxes of $15.1 million
and the gain on the sale of the MAX 5000 product family of $10.3 million.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES | During 2000, the net cash provided by investing activities was $290.3 million, which was driven by cash
proceeds of $350.4 million from the sale of our equity interest in WaferTech and net sales of short-term investments of $43.0 million. These
items were partially offset by cash payments of $11.5 million for the acquisitions of DesignPRO and Right Track and the purchase of long-
term investments totaling $4.0 million. In addition, we invested $87.5 million primarily in land, manufacturing and data processing equipment
and software, and building improvements in our headquarters and Penang facilities.

During 1999, the net cash used for investing activities was $314.9 million. We purchased $233.3 million (net) of short-term investments and
made long-term investments, mainly in WaferTech, totaling $62.4 million. Additionally, we invested $29.8 million primarily for
manufacturing and data processing equipment and software. These items were partially offset by proceeds of $10.7 million received from the
sale of the MAX 5000 product family and our equity interest in Cypress Semiconductor (Texas), Inc.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES | During 2000, the net cash used for financing activities was $508.6 million, which was driven by the repurchase
of 17.1 million shares of our common stock for $555.5 million. The repurchase was partialy offset by net proceeds of $39.9 million from the
issuance of 8.2 million shares of our common stock to employees through various option and employee stock purchase plans. In addition, we
received $7.0 million from the sale of put warrants.

During 1999, the net cash used for financing activities was $54.7 million, which was driven by the repurchase of 4.3 million shares of our
common stock for $87.1 million. The repurchase was partially offset by net proceeds of $29.9 million from the issuance of 10.9 million shares
of our common stock to employees through various option and employee stock purchase plans. In addition, we received $2.4 million from the
sale of put warrants.

FINANCIAL CONDITION | Since our inception, we have used a combination of equity and debt financing and cash generated from
operations to support our operating activities.

As of December 31, 2000, we had $1,133.6 million of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments available to finance our operating
activities and future growth. Our management believes that capital expenditures will increase in 2001 primarily due to anticipated higher
expenditures in manufacturing and data processing equipment aswell as building improvements in our headquarters and Penang facilities. We
believe the available sources of funds and cash we expect to generate from operations will be adequate to finance current operations, capital
expenditures and common stock repurchases for at least the next year.
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EMPLOYEES | The number of employeeswas 1,947 in 2000, 1,398 in 1999 and 1,151 in 1998, reflecting an increase of 39.3% in 2000 and
21.5% in 1999.

IMPACT OF CURRENCY AND INFLATION | We purchase the majority of our materials and services in U.S. dollars, and transact our
foreign salesin U.S. dollars. We have, in the past, entered into forward contracts to hedge against currency fluctuations and to meet contractual
commitments denominated in foreign currencies. During 2000, we entered into a forward exchange contract to purchase Mdaysian ringgit to
meet a portion of our firm contractual commitmentsto be paid in ringgits. The contract will be settled in June 2001. We may enter into similar
contracts from time to time should conditions appear favorable. Inflation has not significantly impacted our financia results. As of December
31, 1999, we had no open foreign exchange contracts for the purchase or sa e of foreign currencies.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

Our investment portfolio consisted of fixed income securities of $1,028.8 million as of December 31, 2000 and $776.5 million as of December
31, 1999. These securities, like all fixed income instruments, are subject to interest rate risk and will decline in value if market interest rates
increase. If market interest rates were to increase immediately and uniformly by 10% from levels as of December 31, 2000 and December 31,
1999, the declinein the fair value of the portfolio would not be material. Additionally, we have the ability to hold our fixed income investments
until maturity and, therefore, we would not expect to recognize an adverse impact on income or cash flows.

We have internationa subsidiaries and branch operations and are, therefore, subject to foreign currency rate exposure. To date, our exposure to
exchange rate volatility has not been significant. If foreign currency rates fluctuate by 10% from rates at December 31, 2000 and December 31,
1999, our financial position and results of operations would not be materially affected. However, we cannot assure you there will not be a
material impact in the future.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
(In thousands, except par value amount) 2000 1999
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivaents $ 496,385 $ 164,257
Short-term investments 637,224 681,409
Total cash, cash equival ents and short-term investments 1,133,609 845,666
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $5,998 and
$6,865, respectively 168,940 90,101
Inventories 273,562 64,027
Deferred income taxes 178,750 84,747
Other current assets 14,498 22,344
Total current assets 1,769,359 1,106,885
Property and equipment, net 207,858 155,217
Investments and other assets 26,917 177,497
$ 2,004,134 $ 1,439,599
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 86,409 $ 32,272
Accrued liabilities 26,992 26,758
Accrued compensation 46,144 25,301
Deferred income on sales to distributors 460,314 227,760
Income taxes payable 136,345 9,435
Total current liabilities 756,204 321,526
Commitments and contingencies (See Notes 8 and 13)
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock;
$.001 par value; 700,000 shares authorized; 389,265 and 397,260 shares
issued and outstanding, respectively 389 397
Capital in excess of par value 389,184 326,241
Retained earnings 908,196 791,435
Deferred stock-based compensation (49,101) -
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (738) -
Total stockholders' equity 1,247,930 1,118,073
$ 2,004,134 $ 1,439,599

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31,

2000

1999

1998

Sales
Cost of sales
Gross margin
Research and development expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Acquired in-process research and development expense
Income from operations
Gain on sale of WaferTech, LLC
Interest and other income, net
Income before income taxes and equity investment
Provision for income taxes
Equity in loss of WaferTech, LLC
Net income

Per share:
Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share
Shares used in computing per share amounts:
Basic
Diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$1,376,815 $ 836,623 $ 654,342
466,994 301,322 249,474
909,821 535,301 404,868
172,373 86,065 59,864
209,979 143,214 113,161

6,305 - -
521,164 306,022 231,843
178,105 - -

46,145 37,055 12,340
745,414 343,077 244,183
247,107 111,499 79,356
1,400 7,584 10,440

$ 496,907 $ 223,994 $ 154,387
$ 1.25 $ 057 $ 041
$ 119 $ 054 $ 039
396,849 396,158 373,972
416,629 414,928 406,356



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2000 1999 1998
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income $ 496,907 $ 223,994 $ 154,387
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Equity in loss of WaferTech, LLC 1,400 7,584 10,440
Gain on sale of WaferTech, LLC (178,105) - -
Gain on sale of MAX 5000 product family - (10,275) -
Depreciation and amortization 40,065 29,416 30,038
Write-off of acquired in-process research and devel opment 6,305 - -
Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation 9,764 - -
Deferred income taxes (93,531) (15,103) (6,568)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net (78,839) (33,963) (887)
Inventories (209,268) 5,375 29,014
Other assets 9,449 19,232 13,446
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 73,361 33,671 (7,113
Deferred income on sales to distributors 232,554 66,425 32,892
Income taxes payable 240,353 76,423 14,420
Cash provided by operating activities 550,415 402,779 270,069
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (87,508) (29,821) (23,950)
Proceeds from sale of WaferTech, LLC 350,384 - -
Net change in short-term investments 42,976 (233,332) (93,269)
Acquisitions of DesignPRO and Right Track (11,535) - -
Net change in other long-term investments (4,000) (1,928) 552
Investment in WaferTech, LLC - (60,500) -
Proceeds from sale of MAX 5000 product family - 10,700 -
Cash provided by (used for) investing activities 290,317 (314,881) (116,667)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 39,871 29,945 15,214
Repurchase of common stock (555,453) (87,053) (60,348)
Proceeds from sale of put warrants 6,978 2,438 -
Cash used for financing activities (508,604) (54,670) (45,134)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 332,128 33,228 108,268
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year 164,257 131,029 22,761
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 496,385 $ 164,257 $ 131,029
Cash paid during the year for:
Income taxes $ 106,777 $ 45335 $ 73526
Interest - - 6,568
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activities:
Issuance of common stock and options for acquisitions 59,928 2,927 -
Conversion of subordinated debt into common stock - - 226,787

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common Stock Accumulated
Number of and Capital Deferred  Stock- Other Total
Common In Excess of Retained based Comprehensive Stockholders'
(In thousands) Shares Par Value Earnings Compensation Loss Equity
Balance, December 31, 1997 356,740 $ 123,633 $ 413,054 $ - $ - $ 536,687
Net income - - 154,387 - - 154,387
Tax benefit resulting from empl oyee stock
transactions - 8,969 - - - 8,969
Issuance of common stock 5,085 15,239 - - - 15,239
Repurchase of common stock (7,240) (60,348) - - - (60,348)
Conversion of subordinated debt into common
stock 35,955 226,787 - - - 226,787
Balance, December 31, 1998 390,540 314,280 567,441 - - 881,721
Net income - - 223,994 - - 223,994
Tax benefit resulting from empl oyee stock
transactions - 64,101 - - - 64,101
Issuance of common stock 10,934 29,945 - - - 29,945
Issuance of common stock for acquisition 116 2,927 - - - 2,927
Repurchase of common stock (4,330) (87,053) - - - (87,053)
Proceeds from sales of put warrants - 2,438 - - - 2,438
Balance, December 31, 1999 397,260 326,638 791,435 - - 1,118,073
Components of comprehensive income:
Net income - - 496,907 - - 496,907
Change in unrealized loss on available-for-sale
investments, net of tax expense of $472 - - - - (738) (738)
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 496,169
Tax benefit resulting from empl oyee stock
transactions - 113,859 - - - 113,859
Issuance of common stock 8,201 39,871 - - - 39,871
Issuance of common stock and options for
acquisitions 934 59,928 - (41,259) - 18,669
Deferred stock-based compensation resulting from
issuance of options and restricted stock - 17,606 - (17,606) - -
Amortization of deferred stock-based
compensation - - - 9,764 - 9,764
Repurchase of common stock (17,130) (175,307) (380,146) - - (555,453)
Proceeds from sales of put warrants - 6,978 - - - 6,978
Balance, December 31, 2000 389,265 $ 389,573 $ 908,196 $ (49,101) $ (738) $1,247,930

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: The Company

Altera Corporation, referred to as “we,” “us’ or “our,” was founded in 1983 and is incorporated in the State of Delaware. We design,
manufacture and market high-performance, high-density programmable logic devices and associated computer aided engineering logic
development tools. Programmable logic devices are semiconductor chips that can be programmed on-site, using software tools that run on
personal computers or engineering workstations. Our CMOS-based programmable logic devices address high-speed, high-density and low-
power applications in the telecommunications, data communications, computer periphera and industrial markets.

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies

BASIS OF PRESENTATION | We have a fiscal year that ends on the Friday nearest December 31st. For presentation purposes, the
consolidated financia statements and accompanying notes refer to our fiscal year end as December 31st. The consolidated financial statements
include our accounts as well as our wholly owned subsidiaries after elimination of al significant intercompany balances and transactions.

USE OF ESTIMATES | Our management has made certain estimates and assumptions concerning the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the fiscal years presented to prepare our financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

COMMON STOCK SPLIT | On April 21, 1999, we declared a two-for-one stock split in the form of a 100 percent stock dividend to holders
of record of our common stock on May 4, 1999. Dividend shares were distributed to stockholders on May 19, 1999. On July 13, 2000, we
declared a two-for-one stock split in the form of a 100 percent stock dividend to holders of record of our common stock on July 26, 2000.
Dividend shares were distributed to stockholders on August 10, 2000. All prior period share and income per share data have been retroactively
restated to give effect to the stock splits for all periods presented.

CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS | Cash equivaents consist of highly liquid investments with origina
maturities of three months or less. Short-term investments are held as securities available for sale and are carried at their market value as of the
balance sheet date. The amortized cost of securities is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to maturity. Such
amortization is included in investment income. Redized gains or losses are determined on the specific identification method and are reflected
in income. Net unrealized gains or losses are recorded directly in stockholders equity except those unrealized losses that are deemed to be
other than temporary are reflected in income.

INVENTORIES | Inventories are recorded at the lower of standard cost, which approximates actual cost on a first-in-first-out basis, or
market. The inventories at December 31, 2000 and 1999 were comprised of the following:

December 31,
(In thousands) 2000 1999
Raw materials and work in process $ 203,681 $ 40,612
Finished goods 69,881 23,415
Total inventories $ 273,562 $ 64,027
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT | Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation
and amortization are computed using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives of three to five years are used for equipment and office
furniture and forty years for buildings. Amortization of leasehold improvements is computed using the shorter of the remaining facility lease
term or the estimated useful life of the improvements. Property and equipment at December 31, 2000 and 1999 was comprised of the following
components:

December 31,
(In thousands) 2000 1999
Land $ 30474 $ 20,753
Building 89,419 80,893
Equipment and software 183,315 130,016
Office furniture and fixtures 17,392 11,755
L easehold improvements 3,190 1,623
Property and equipment, at cost 323,790 245,040
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (115,932) (89,823)
Property and equipment, net $ 207,858 $ 155,217

We evaluate the recoverability of our property and equipment and intangible assets in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 121, or SFAS No. 121, “ Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of.”
This standard requires recognition of impairment of long-lived assets in the event the net book value of such assets exceeds the future
undiscounted cash flows attributable to such assets.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS | For certain of our financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, short-term
investments, accounts receivable and accounts payable, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to their short maturities.

CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK | Financia instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and accounts receivable. We place our short-term investments in a variety of
financia instruments and, by policy, limit the amount of credit exposure through diversification and by restricting our investments to highly
rated securities.

We sell our products to distributors and OEMs throughout the world. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers financia
condition and, generally, require collateral, such asletters of credit, whenever deemed necessary. On August 7, 2000, our two principal North
American distributors merged as Arrow Electronics, Inc. acquired Wyle Electronics. In 2000, our two largest distributors, each of which
accounted for more than 10% of total sales, accounted for 58% and 11% of sales. Prior to the merger, we had three distributors each accounting
for more than 10% of total sales. In 1999, they accounted for 34%, 19% and 13% of sales, whereas in 1998, they accounted for 30%, 21% and
11% of sales.

At December 31, 2000, one distributor accounted for 45% of total accounts receivable. At December 31, 1999, three distributors, each of
which accounted for more than 10% of our accounts receivable, accounted for 49% of total accounts receivable in aggregate.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS | We purchase the majority of our materials and services in U.S. dollars and our foreign sales are
billed in U.S. dollars. We have, in the past, entered into forward contracts to hedge against currency fluctuations and meet contractua
commitments denominated in foreign currencies. During 2000, we entered into a forward exchange contract to purchase Maaysian ringgit to
meet a portion of our firm contractual commitmentsto be paid in ringgits. The contract will be settled in June 2001. We may enter into similar
contracts from time to time should conditions appear favorable. Inflation has not significantly impacted our financia results. As of December
31, 1999, we had no open foreign exchange contracts for the purchase or sa e of foreign currencies.

REVENUE RECOGNITION | We recognize revenue from product sales upon shipment to OEMs and end users. Reserves for sales returns

and allowances are recorded at the time of shipment. Our sales to distributors are made under agreements allowing for returns or credits under
certain circumstances. We defer recognition of revenue on sales to distributors until products are resold by the distributor to the end user.
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DEPENDENCE ON WAFER SUPPLIERS | We do not directly manufacture finished silicon wafers. Our strategy has been to maintain
relationshi ps with wafer foundries. We have been successful in maintaining such relationships. See Notes 6 and 7. Although our management
believes that the foundries ability to supply our wafer needs will remain through at least the first half of year 2001, we cannot assure you that
we will be able to satisfy our future wafer needs from current or alternative manufacturing sources. This could result in possible loss of sales or
reduced margins.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS | We account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed in
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, or APB No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” Under APB No. 25, compensation
cost is measured as the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of our stock at the date of grant over the exercise price of the option granted.
Compensation cost for stock options, if any, is recognized ratably over the vesting period. We provide additional pro forma disclosures as
required under SFAS No. 123, “ Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” See Note 11.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME | We adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 130, or SFAS No. 130, “Reporting
Comprehensive Income” as of the first quarter of 1998. SFAS No. 130 establishes standards for reporting and disclosure of comprehensive
income and its components. In 2000, comprehensive income, including net income and unredized loss on available-for-sale investments, was
$496.2 million. In 1999 and 1998, comprehensive income gpproximated net income.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION | The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for each of our foreign subsidiaries. Assets and
liabilities that are not denominated in the functional currency are remeasured into U.S. dollars and the resulting gains or losses areincluded in
“Interest and other income, net.”

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS | In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, or SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 133
establishes standards for accounting and reporting on derivative instruments for periods beginning after June 15, 2000. SFAS No. 133 requires
that all derivative instruments be recognized in the balance sheet as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value. Furthermore, SFAS
No. 133 requires current recognition in earnings of changes in the fair value of derivative instruments depending on the intended use of the
derivative and the resulting designation. In June 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 138, “ Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities - An Amendment of SFAS No. 133.” SFAS No. 138 amends the accounting and reporting standards for certain derivatives and
hedging activities. Our adoption of SFAS No. 133, which became effective January 1, 2001, will not have a material effect on our financia
statements.
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Note 3: Income Per Share

Basic income per share is computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period and excludes the dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock. Diluted income per share reflects the
dilution of potential common shares outstanding during a period. In computing diluted income per share, the tax benefit resulting from
employee stock transactions, unamortized deferred stock-based compensation and the average stock price for the period are used in
determining the number of shares assumed to be repurchased with the proceeds from the exercise of stock options.

For the three year period ended December 31, 2000, we excluded certain stock options from the calculation of diluted income per share

because they were anti-dilutive, but these options could be dilutive in the future. A reconciliation of basic and diluted income per share is
presented below:

Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2000 1999 1998
Basic:
Net income $ 496,907 $ 223,994 $ 154,387
Weighted shares outstanding 396,849 396,158 373,972
Net income per share $ 1.25 $ 0.57 $ 0.41
Diluted:
Net income $ 496,907 $ 223,994 $ 154,387
Effect of 5.75% convertible subordinated notes - - 4,039
Income before effect of convertible subordinated notes $ 496,907 $ 223,994 $ 158,426
Weighted shares outstanding 396,849 396,158 373,972
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options and restricted stock 19,780 18,770 16,132
5.75% convertible subordinated notes - - 16,252
416,629 414,928 406,356
Net income per share $ 1.19 $ 054 $ 0.39
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Note 4: Marketable Securities

Our portfolio of marketable securities at December 31 consists of the following:

2000 1999
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
(In thousands) Cost Gains L osses Fair Value Fair Value
Money market funds $ 46,128 $ - $ - $ 46,128 $ 5919
Municipal bonds 475,025 537 (80) 475,482 485,926
U.S. government and agency obligations 133,973 208 (29 134,152 41,011
Corporate bonds 213,847 662 (2,687) 211,822 161,319
Certificates of deposit and other debt securities 161,050 187 (8) 161,229 82,282
$ 1,030,023 $ 1,594 $ (2804 $ 1,028,813 $ 776,457
Included in:

Cash and cash equivaents $ 391,589 $ 95048
Short-term investments 637,224 681,409
$ 1,028,813 $ 776,457

Our portfolio of marketable securities by contractual maturity is as follows:

December 31,

(In thousands) 2000 1999
Duein oneyear or less $ 423,984 $ 250,372
Due after one year through two years 604,829 526,085
$ 1,028,813 $ 776,457

At December 31, 2000, unrealized loss on securities before tax was $1.2 million. At December 31, 1999, the fair market value of securities
approximated cost.

Note 5: Acquisitions

We completed the acquisitions of all outstanding capital stock of DesignPRO Inc., adeveloper and provider of intellectual property cores and
custom design solutions, on April 19, 2000, Right Track CAD Inc., adeveloper of architectural and computer aided design tools for advanced
programmable logic devices, on May 1, 2000, and Northwest Logic, Inc., a provider of system design services and intellectual property
specializing in telecommunications, data communications and embedded processor systems design, on September 11, 2000.

We issued 934,381 shares of our common stock and paid approximately $11.5 million in cash, net of cash acquired of $0.3 million, for al of
the capital stock of DesignPRO, Right Track and Northwest Logic. In addition, we granted options to purchase 323,146 shares of our common
stock in exchange for all of the stock options outstanding of DesignPRO and Right Track. The fair value of our shares issued was
approximately $45.3 million and the fair value of our options granted was approximately $14.6 million. Certain shares issued were subject to
our repurchase rights under certain circumstances. These rights lapse over a two to four year period. We incurred direct acquisition costs of
approximately $0.4 million, which were included in the purchase price. Total consideration for the three acquisitions was $72.1 million. The
acquisitions were accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. The purchase price was allocated to the tangible and intangible
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based in part on an independent appraisal of their respective fair values. Total consideration paid in
connection with the acquisitions was attributable to the following (in thousands):
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Amortization

Amount Period

Deferred stock-based compensation $ 41,259 2to4years

Market ready technology 21,446 3to 6 years

In-process research and development 6,305 -

Other intangible assets 2,481 3years

Tangible assets and working capital 590 -
$ 72,081

No supplemental pro formainformation is presented due to the immateria effect on prior period results of operations.

The alocation of amounts to market ready technology and in-process research and development were consistent with widely recognized
appraisal practices. Our analysis resulted in a valuation of market ready technology at $21.4 million. Market ready technology represents
technologies that have reached technological feasibility, and therefore can be capitalized. We are amortizing the market ready technology on a
straight-line basis over a period of three to six years. Our analysis also resulted in a $6.3 million charge to acquired in-process research and
development. The acquired in-process technology represents the appraised value of technologies in the development stage that had not yet
reached technological feasibility and do not have alternative future uses. We expensed this amount as a non-recurring charge upon
consummation of the acquisitions.

We determined the value assigned to in-process research and development by identifying research projects in areas for which technologica
feasibility had not been established. For both the Right Track and DesignPRO valuations, we estimated the expected cash flows from the
projects once commercially viable. We then discounted the net cash flows back to their present value and applied a percentage of completion.
We determined the percentage of completion using milestones representing our management's estimate of effort, value added, and degree of
difficulty of the portion of each project completed as of the acquisition date, as compared to the remaining research and development to be
completed to bring each project to technical feasibility.

If we do not successfully develop our research projects discussed above, our sales and profitability may be adversely affected in future periods
and the value of other intangible assets acquired may become impaired. Our management believes that the in-process research and
development charge is valued consistently with the SEC staff’s current views regarding valuation methodologies. We cannot assure you that
the SEC staff will not take issue with any assumptions used in our valuation model and require us to revise the amount all ocated to in-process
research and development.

Note 6: Joint Venture

In June 1996, we formed WaferTech, LLC, a joint venture company, with TSMC and several other partners to build and operate a wafer
manufacturing plant in Camas, Washington. In return for a $140.4 million cash investment, we received an 18% equity ownership in
WaferTech and certain obligations and rights to procure up to 27% of WaferTech’s output at market prices. In January 1999, we purchased
from Analog Devices, Inc. an additional 5% equity ownership interest in WaferTech for approximately $37.5 million, increasing our
ownership interest to 23%. Thisincreased investment in WaferTech provided us with additional obligations and rights to procure up to 35% of
WaferTech's future output. In October 1999, the partners in WaferTech contributed $100.0 million in additiona equity to support capital
expansion plans and working capita requirements of WaferTech. Our share of that contribution was $23.0 million; we maintained our same
ownership interest and rights to acquire WaferTech’s output.

On December 27, 2000, we sold our 23% ownership interest in WaferTech to a subsidiary of TSMC for $350.4 million in cash. The one-time
pre-tax gain on the sale was $178.1 million. Although we sold our equity interest in WaferTech in December 2000, we will continue to utilize
WaferTech as one of our suppliers of silicon wafers. Through December 27, 2000, we accounted for our investment under the equity method
based on our ability to exercise significant influence over WaferTech's operating and financial policies. Our equity in the loss of WaferTech
was $1.4 million for 2000, $7.6 million for 1999, $10.4 million for 1998.
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Note 7: Investments and Other Assets

At December 31, 2000, our long-term investments and other assets primarily consisted of intangible assets acquired in connection with the
acquisitions of DesignPRO, Right Track and Northwest Logic of approximately $21.1 million, net of $2.9 million of accumulated
amortization. At December 31, 1999, our long-term investments were primarily related to our investment in WaferTech of $173.7 million. On
December 27, 2000, we sold our 23% ownership interest in WaferTech. See Note 6.

In 1995, we entered into several agreements with TSMC. We agreed to make a $57.1 million deposit to TSMC for future wafer capacity
allocations that extended into 2000. Under the terms of the agreement, TSMC agreed to provide us with wafers manufactured using TSMC
processes and according to our specifications, and we agreed to purchase and TSMC agreed to supply a specific capacity of wafers per year
through 2000. Billings for actual wafers purchased from TSMC reduced the prepaid balance. The deposits were fully utilized in 2000.

Note 8: Commitments
We lease certain of our sales facilities under non-cancel able lease agreements expiring at various times through 2009. The leases require us to

pay property taxes, insurance, maintenance and repair costs. Future minimum lease payments under all non-cancel able operating leases are as
follows:

Years ending December 31, (In thousands)
2001 $ 4,895
2002 4,490
2003 4,054
2004 2,848
2005 2,159
Thereafter 293

$ 18,739

We have the option to extend or renew most of our leases. Rental expense under all operating leases amounted to $3.5 million in 2000, $2.8
million in 1999 and $2.5 million in 1998.

Note 9: Convertible Subordinated Notes

In June 1995, we issued $230.0 million of convertible subordinated notes due in June 2002 and bearing an interest rate of 5.75%, payable
semi-annually. The notes were convertible into shares of our common stock at a price of $6.40 per share. On May 15, 1998, we called for the
redemption of the notes effective June 16, 1998. As aresult, substantially all of the notes were converted into 35,954,596 shares of common
stock with the remaining notes redeemed at a price of $1,033.06 per $1,000 principal amount of the notes. Total semi-annual interest paid on
the notes during 1998 was $6.5 million. The unamortized debt issuance costs as of the redemption date of approximately $3.1 million was
recorded as a reduction to additional paid-in capital.

Note 10: Stockholders’ Equity

In May 2000, our stockholders voted to approve an amendment to our Certificate of Incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares
from 400 million to 700 million.

COMMON STOCK REPURCHASES | During fiscal 1998, we repurchased a total of 7,240,000 shares of common stock for an aggregate
cost of $60.3 million. During fiscal 1999, we repurchased a total of 4,330,000 shares of common stock for an aggregate cost of $87.1 million.
During fiscal 2000, we repurchased atotal of 17,130,000 shares of common stock for an aggregate cost of $555.5 million. As of December 31,
2000, 48,000,000 shares were authorized for repurchase. Since the inception of the repurchase program in 1996 through December 31, 2000,
we have repurchased atota of 29,900,000 shares. All shares were retired upon acquisition.

PUT WARRANTS | In December 1999 and June 2000, we sold put warrants to independent third parties. These put warrants entitled the
holders the right to sell 2,500,000 shares of our common stock to us at specified prices on stated maturity dates. The cash proceeds from the
sale of the put warrants of $7.0 millionin 2000 and $2.4 million in 1999 have been included as an addition to capital in excess of par value. As
of December 31, 2000, warrants for 1,500,000 shares expired unexercised while warrants for 1,000,000 shares were exercised in November
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2000. We repurchased these 1,000,000 shares for an aggregate cost of $33.7 million. These shares were included in the 29,900,000 tota
repurchased shares, which count against the 48,000,000 shares authorized for repurchase under our common stock repurchase program.

DEFERRED STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION | During 2000, we recorded aggregate deferred stock-based compensation of $41.3
million representing the value of restricted stock issued in conjunction with the acquisitions of DesignPRO and Right Track. In addition, we
recorded deferred stock-based compensation of $17.6 million in conjunction with stock options and restricted stock granted to certain new
employees. The restricted stock issued was subject to our repurchase rights under certain circumstances. These rights lapse over atwo to four
year period. At December 31, 2000, 1,260,243 shares were subject to our repurchase rights. Deferred stock-based compensation represents the
difference between the grant price and the quoted market price of our stock at the date of grant. We are amortizing deferred stock-based
compensation over the vesting period of two to four years. Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation was $9.8 million during 2000.

Note 11: Stock-Based Compensation Plans

At December 31, 2000, we had three stock-based compensation plans, which are described bel ow. We apply APB No. 25 in accounting for our
plans.

STOCK OPTION PLANS | As of December 31, 2000, the 1996 Stock Option Plan had 44.0 million shares reserved for issuance and 1.8
million shares were available for future grants. The 1998 Director Stock Option Plan had 680,000 shares reserved for issuance and 445,000
shares were available for future grants.

Any shares reserved for issuance under the 1987 Stock Option Plan and the 1988 Director Stock Option Plan relating to ungranted stock
options were cancelled upon the adoption of the new option plans. As of December 31, 2000, under the 1987 Stock Option Plan, 9.0 million
previously granted shares remained unexercised, while under the 1988 Director Stock Option Plan, 1.2 million previoudy granted shares
remained unexercised.

The 1998 Director Stock Option Plan provides for the periodic issuance of stock options to members of our Board of Directors who are not
employees. Under all stock option plans, the option’s maximum term is 10 years. Options granted prior to October 1997 generally vest over
five years at annual increments as determined by the Board of Directors. In October 1997, the Board of Directors approved a proposa to
shorten the vesting period for new grants under the 1996 Stock Option Plan whereby options granted subsequent to September 30, 1997 will
generally vest over four years at annual increments as determined by the Board of Directors.

A summary of our stock option activity and related weighted average exercise prices for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2000 1999 1998
(In thousands, except price per share amounts) Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Options outstanding - beginning of year 46,778  $ 9.06 50,948 $ 545 49,732 $ 4.79
Stock options:
Granted 13,406 35.92 9,124 20.96 8,828 10.03
Exercised (7,386) 4.13 (10,276) 2.23 (4,220) 2.10
Forfeited (2,117) 17.74 (3,018) 7.39 (3,392) 6.39
Options outstanding - end of year 50,681 $16.52 46,778 $ 9.06 50,948 $ 5.45
2000 1999 1998
(In thousands, except price per share amounts) Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Options vested and exercisable at end of year 15918 $ 5.86 15,426 $ 3.80 17,888 $ 2.50
Weighted-average fair value per share of options granted
during the year $19.06 $10.12 $4.21
Weighted-average fair value per share of purchase rights
granted during the year $14.65 $ 4.04 $ 253
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Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Number Outstanding at Weighted Average Number Exercisable at

Range of 12/31/00 Remaining Contractual Weighted Average 12/31/00 Weighted Average
Exercise Prices (in thousands) Life (years) Exercise Price (in thousands) Exercise Price
$ 001 -$ 480 9,029 4.03 $ 270 6,894 $ 225
$ 491 -$ 766 9,878 6.07 6.83 5,244 6.17
$ 7.70 - $13.02 10,701 6.80 9.96 2,663 8.87
$13.03-$23.94 9,580 8.82 21.01 971 18.08
$24.03- $46.22 9,336 9.57 34.51 146 28.62
$46.31- $63.44 2,157 9.55 53.50 - -
50,681 7.17 $ 16.52 15,918 $ 5.86

Effective January 30, 1998, we offered employees, except all officers and director-level employees, the right to reprice their stock options
granted from January 1, 1995 through January 19, 1998. The repriced options have an exercise price of $8.57, the fair value of our common
stock on the effective date, and the vesting schedule of such options was extended by three months. In connection with this action,
approximately 5.2 million options were repriced that previously had a weighted average exercise price of $12.13.

EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN | Asof December 31, 2000, the 1987 Employee Stock Purchase Plan had 13.7 million shares of
common stock reserved for issuance. Under the terms of the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, full-time employees, nearly all of whom are
eligible to participate, can choose each year to have up to 10% of their annual base earnings withheld to purchase our common stock with a
maximum of $25,000 per year. The purchase price of the stock is 85% of the lower of the closing price at the beginning or at the end of each
six-month offering period. We do not recognize compensation cost related to employee purchase rights under the Plan.

Sal es under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan were 423,988 shares of common stock at an average price of $22.05 per share in 2000, 634,478
shares at $10.81 per share in 1999, and 886,252 shares at $7.13 per share in 1998. There were 1.3 million shares available for future purchases
under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan as of December 31, 2000.

We received tax benefits of $113.9 million in 2000, $64.1 million in 1999 and $9.0 million in 1998 on the exercise of non-qudified stock
options and on the disposition of stock acquired by exercise of incentive stock options or through the Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

PRO FORMA NET INCOME AND NET INCOME PER SHARE | The fair value of each option grant, as defined by SFAS No. 123, is
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The Black-Scholes model, as well as other currently accepted
option valuation models, was devel oped to estimate the fair value of freely tradable, fully transferable options without vesting restrictions that
significantly differ from our stock option awards. These models also require highly subjective assumptions, including future stock price
volatility and expected time until exercise, which greatly affect the fair value on the grant date.

To compute the estimated fair value of our stock option grants and employees purchase rights under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, the
Black-Scholes method was used with the following weighted-average assumptions and dividend yields of 0% for al years presented:

Stock Options Employees' Purchase Rights
Years ended December 31, 2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998
Expected life from vesting date (years) 0.96 0.83 0.73 0.50 0.50 0.50
Expected stock price volatility 57.3% 53.2% 48.0% 84.6% 45.9% 56.0%
Risk-free interest rate 6.2% 5.7% 5.2% 5.9% 4.5% 5.3%

Had we recorded compensation costs based on the estimated grant date fair value as defined by SFAS No. 123, for awards granted under its
Stock Option Plans and Stock Purchase Plan, our net income and net income per share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts
below for the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998:

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2000 1999 1998
Pro forma net income $ 440,513 $ 199,850 $ 139,986
Pro forma net income per share:

Basic $ 111 $ 050 $ 037
Diluted 1.07 0.49 0.36
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Note 12: Income Taxes

U.S. and foreign components of income before income taxes were:

Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands) 2000 1999 1998
United States $ 619,032 $ 280,254 $ 207,273
Foreign 126,382 62,823 36,910
Income before income taxes $ 745,414 $ 343,077 $ 244,183

Unremitted earnings of our foreign subsidiaries that are considered permanently invested outside the United States and on which no deferred
taxes have been provided, aggregate to approximately $138.5 million at December 31, 2000.

The provision for income taxes consists of:

Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands) 2000 1999 1998
Current tax expense:
United States $ 282,547 $ 113,510 $ 62,978
State 29,454 15,365 15,488
Foreign 20,075 6,793 7,458
Total current tax expense 332,076 135,668 85,924
Deferred taxes:
United States (64,892) (18,064) (1,833)
State (10,481) (4,552) (1,549)
Foreign (9,596) (1,553) (3,186)
Total deferred taxes (84,969) (24,169) (6,568)
Total provision for income taxes $ 247,107 $ 111,499 $ 79,356
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) were asfollows:
(In thousands) 2000 1999
Assets:
Accrued expenses and reserves $ 179,766 $ 80,591
Acquisition costs 6,084 6,779
Other 1,235 14,676
Gross deferred tax assets 187,085 102,046
Depreciation (5,032) (13,300)
Deferred tax asset valuation alowance (3,303) (3,999)
Net deferred tax assets $ 178,750 $ 84,747

The change in deferred taxes includes $9.0 million of deferred taxes related to the investment in WaferTech. The valuation allowances of $3.3
million at December 31, 2000, and $4.0 million at December 31, 1999 are attributable to deferred tax assets from the 1994 acquisition of

Intel’s programmable logic business. Sufficient uncertainty exists regarding the reaizability of these assets and, accordingly, valuation
allowances are required.
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Our income taxes payable for federal, state, and foreign purposes have been reduced by the tax benefits associated with exercise of non-
qualified stock options and disposition of stock acquired by exercise of incentive stock options or through the Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
We receive an income tax benefit calculated as the tax effect of the difference between the fair market value of the stock issued at the time of
exercise and the option price. These benefits were credited directly to stockholders' equity and amounted to $113.9 million in 2000, $64.1
million in 1999 and $9.0 million in 1998.

The items accounting for the difference between income taxes computed at the federa statutory rate and the provision for income taxes are as
follows:

Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2000 1999 1998
Tax provision at U.S. statutory rates $ 260,895 $ 120,077 $ 85464
State taxes net of federd benefit 20,872 8,920 8,061
Foreign income taxed at lower rates (24,157) (9,040) (6,830)
Interest income on municipal obligations (6,878) (5,950) (5,014)
Other net (3,625) (2,508) (2,325)

Total provision for income taxes $ 247,107 $ 111,499 $ 79,356

Note 13: Litigation

We are a party to lawsuits and may in the future become a party to lawsuits involving various types of claims, including, but not limited to,
unfair competition and intellectual property matters. Legal proceedings tend to be unpredictable and costly and may be affected by events
outside of our control. We cannot assure you that litigation will not have an adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.
Our major litigation matters as of December 31, 2000 are described below.

In June 1993, Xilinx, Inc. sued us for monetary damages and injunctive relief based on our alleged infringement of certain patents held by
Xilinx. In June 1993, we sued Xilinx for monetary damages and injunctive relief based on Xilinx’s alleged infringement of certain patents held
by us. In April 1995, we filed a separate lawsuit against Xilinx in Delaware, Xilinx’s state of incorporation, seeking monetary damages and
injunctive relief based on Xilinx’s aleged infringement of one of our patents. In May 1995, Xilinx counter-claimed against us in Delaware,
asserting defenses and seeking monetary damages and injunctive relief based on our aleged infringement of certain patents held by Xilinx.
Subsequently, the Delaware case was transferred to California. In October 1998, both parties filed motions for summary judgment with respect
to certain issues in the first two cases regarding infringement or non-infringement and validity or invalidity of the patents at issue in the
respective cases. In our suit, the court granted that one of our patentsis invalid, granted that one patent is not infringed, and granted another
patent is not literally infringed but denied non-infringement under the doctrine of equivalence. In October and November 2000, Xilinx's suit
went to trial and Xilinx withdrew its claim against our MAX 5000, MAX 7000 and MAX 9000 family products. Upon completion of trial, the
jury rendered a verdict that our FLEX 8000 family products infringe the two Xilinx patents and that the patents are valid. We have filed post
trial motions to overturn the verdicts or to seek a new trial. In a press release dated November 17, 2000, Xilinx announced it will seek an
injunction against usto stop all shipments of our “FLEX product” and our “derivative programmable | ogic devices” that Xilinx claimsinfringe
the two Xilinx patents. The court ordered continued mediation following the jury verdict. Due to the nature of the litigation with Xilinx and
because the Xilinx lawsuit has not yet reached the damagestrial stage, our management cannot estimate the total expense, the possible loss, if
any, or the range of loss that we may ultimately incur in connection with the verdict. Our management cannot ensure that Xilinx will not
succeed in obtaining significant monetary damages or an i njunction against the manufacture and sale of our products, including but not limited
to our FLEX 8000 family products, or succeed in invalidating our other patents. Although we cannot make any assurances as to the results of
these cases, we believe that the jury verdict isin error and intend to pursue our post trial motions with the court to reverse the verdict and will
file an appeal if our motions are denied. We continue to believe that we have meritorious defenses to the claims asserted in the Xilinx suit and
intend to continue to defend ourselves vigoroudly in this matter.

In May 2000, we sued Xilinx, seeking monetary damages and injunctive relief based on Xilinx’s alleged infringement of certain patents held
by us. In July 2000, Xilinx filed a counterclaim against us aleging infringement of certain patents held by Xilinx. The court hasissued an order
setting the claim construction hearing for our claimsin April 2001. Due to the nature of the litigation with Xilinx and because the lawsuit is
till in the pre-trial stage, our management cannot estimate the total expenses, the possible loss, if any, or the range of loss that may ultimately
be incurred in connection with the counterclaim allegations. Although we cannot make any assurances as to the results of this case, we believe
that we have meritorious defenses to Xilinx’s counterclaim and intend to pursue our claims and defend ourselves vigoroudly in this matter.
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In November 2000, Xilinx filed a complaint against us with the International Trade Commission, or ITC, to bar us from importing or selling
products into the United States that Xilinx asserts infringe three Xilinx patents not previously asserted. Xilinx also requested a permanent
cease and desist order and other penalties, as the ITC may deem appropriate. The ITC has commenced an investigation based on Xilinx's
complaint. Due to the nature of the litigation with Xilinx and because the lawsuit is ill in the pre-trial stage, our management cannot estimate
the total expenses, the possible loss, if any, or the range of loss that may ultimately be incurred in connection with the claim allegations.
Although we cannot make any assurances as to the results of this case, we believe that we have meritorious defenses to Xilinx's claims and
intend to defend ourselves vigoroudly in this matter.

In August 1994, Advanced Micro Devices, Inc., or AMD, sued us seeking monetary damages and injunctive relief based on our alleged
infringement of certain patents held by AMD. In September 1994, we answered the complaint asserting that we are licensed to use the patents
which AMD claims are infringed and filed a counterclaim against AMD alleging infringement of certain patents held by us. In October 1997,
upon completion of trials bifurcated from the infringement claims, the District Court ruled that we are licensed under all patents asserted by
AMD in the suit. In December 1997, AMD filed a Notice of Appea of the District Court’s rulings. In April 1999, the Federal Circuit Court
ruled in AMD’s favor on its appeal, finding that we are not licensed to AMD’s patents, and remanded the case back to the District Court for
further proceedings. In 1999, L attice Semiconductor Corporation entered into an agreement with AMD that includes assuming both the claims
against us and the claims against AMD and has replaced AMD in the suit with Vantis, awholly owned subsidiary of Lattice. Due to the nature
of the litigation, our management cannot estimate the total expense, the possible loss, if any, or the range of loss that may ultimately be
incurred in connection with the allegations. We cannot ensure that Lattice will not succeed in obtaining significant monetary damages or an
injunction against the manufacture and sale of the Classic, MAX 7000, FLEX 8000, MAX 9000 and FLEX 10K product families, or succeed
in invalidating any of our patents remaining in the suit. Although we cannot make any assurances as to the results of this case, we intend to
pursue our claims and defend ourselves vigorously in this matter.

In May 2000, we sued L attice seeking monetary damages and injunctive relief based on Lattice's aleged infringement of certain patents held
by us. In July 2000, Lattice filed a counterclaim against us alleging infringement of certain patents held by Lattice. Due to the nature of the
litigation with Lattice and because the lawsuit is till in the pre-trial stage, our management cannot estimate the total expenses, the possible
loss, if any, or the range of loss that may ultimately be incurred in connection with the counterclaim allegations. Although we cannot make any
assurances as to the results of this case, we intend to pursue our claims and defend ourselves vigorously in this matter.

In November 1999, we sued Clear Logic Inc. alleging that Clear Logic is unlawfully appropriating our registered mask work technology in
violation of the federa mask work statute and that Clear Logic has unlawfully interfered with our relationships and contracts with our
customers. The lawsuit seeks compensatory and punitive damages and an injunction to stop Clear Logic from unlawfully using our mask work
technology and from interfering with our customers. Clear Logic has answered the complaint by denying that it is infringing our mask work
technology and denying that it has unlawfully interfered with our relationships and contracts with our customers. Clear Logic has aso filed a
counterclaim against us for unfair competition under California law alleging that we have made false statements to our customers regarding
Clear Logic. Dueto the nature of the litigation with Clear Logic and because the lawsuit is till in the pre-trial stage, our management cannot
estimate the total expenses, the possible loss, if any, or the range of loss that may ultimately be incurred in connection with the counterclaim
alegations. Although we cannot make any assurances as to the results of this case, we intend to pursue our claims and defend ourselves
vigorously in this matter.
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Note 14: Segment and Geographic Information

We operate in a single industry segment comprising the design, development, manufacture, and sale of CMOS programmable logic integrated
circuits and associated engineering development software and hardware. Our sales by major geographic area (based on destination) were as
follows:

Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2000 1999 1998
North America:
United States $ 660,590 $ 438,807 $ 336,295
Other 126,168 30,561 22,627
Total North America 786,758 469,368 358,922
Europe 300,229 160,027 149,391
Japan 206,958 158,513 118,342
AsiaPacific 82,870 48,715 27,687
Total $ 1,376,815 $ 836,623 $ 654,342

The majority of our long-lived assets were located in the United States. Long-lived assets included net property and equipment and long-term
investments and other assets. Long-lived assets that were outside the United States constituted 26% of the total at December 31, 2000, and less
than 10% of the total at December 31, 1999 and 1998. No single country outside of the United States constituted more than 10% of total long-
lived assetsfor years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998. No single end customer provided more than 10% of our sales for years ended
December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998.

Note 15: Employee Benefits Plans

We have a plan to provide retirement and incidental benefits for our eligible employees, known as the Altera Corporation Savings and
Retirement Plan, or the Plan. As allowed under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, the Plan provides tax deferred salary deductions
for eligible employees. Participants in the Plan may make salary deferrals of up to 20% of the eligible annua salary, limited by the maximum
dollar amount allowed by the Internal Revenue Code. For every dollar deferred under the Plan, we make a matching contribution equal to
100% up to the first 5% of the salary deferred with a maximum of $1,500 per participant per year. Effective January 1, 2001, we increased the
maximum limit of matching contribution from $1,500 to $2,000 per participant per year. Participants become fully vested as to the matching
contribution after five years. Our contributions to the Plan were $1.3 million in both 2000 and 1999 and $1.1 million in 1998.
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Report of Independent Accountants
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Altera Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, of stockholders' equity
and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Altera Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2000
and 1999, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America These financia statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management; our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financia statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Americawhich require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide areasonable basis for the opinion expressed above.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
January 17, 2001
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Supplementary Financial Data

Quarterly Financia Information (UNAUDITED)

(In thousands, except per share amounts) First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
2000

Sales $272,781 $ 340,686 $ 395,395 $ 367,953
Gross profit 178,191 226,001 262,701 242,928
Net income 75,154 98,262 117,989 205,502
Basic net income per share 0.19 0.25 0.30 0.52
Diluted net income per share 0.18 0.23 0.28 0.50
1999

Sales $ 186,399 $197,783 $215,121 $ 237,320
Gross profit 117,245 125,515 138,414 154,127
Net income 46,975 51,078 55,572 70,369
Basic net income per share 0.12 0.13 0.14 0.18
Diluted net income per share 0.11 0.12 0.13 0.17

Item 9. Changesin and Disagreementswith Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.
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PART I11

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The information concerning our executive officers and directors required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the section in Item 1 of
this Report entitled “Directors and Executive Officers.” The section entitled “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in
our Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The sections entitled “Executive Compensation,” “Director Compensation” and “Employment Contracts and Change of Control Arrange-
ments’ in our Proxy Statement are incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ownersand Management.

The section entitled “ Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in our Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The sections entitled “Director Compensation” and “Certain Business Relationships’ in our Proxy Statement are incorporated herein by
reference.
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PART IV
Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K.
€) The following documents are filed as part of this Report:
1. Financiad Statements
The information required by thisitem isincluded in Item 8 of Part |1 of this Report.
2. Financial Statement Schedules.

All schedules have been omitted as they are either not required, not applicable, or the required information is included in the
financial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits.

Exhibit Number Exhibit

2.1** Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated as of November 15, 2000 between Registrant and TSMC Development,
Inc.(14)

31 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed with the Delaware Secretary of State on June 9, 2000.(12)

3.2 By-laws of the Registrant as adopted May 5, 1997 (which became the By-laws of the Registrant on June 19, 1997).(6)

4.1 Specimen copy of certificate for shares of common stock of the Registrant.(7)

10.3(a)+ 1987 Stock Option Plan, and forms of Incentive and Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreements, as amended March 22,
1995 and as restated effective May 10, 1995.(4)

10.4(b)+ 1987 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, and form of Subscription Agreement, as restated effective May 10, 2000.(12)

10.22* Advanced Micro Devices, formerly MMI, Settlement Agreement and associated Series E Preferred Stock Purchase
Agreement and Patent License Agreement, all dated March 31, 1987.(1)

10.26 Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into with each of the Registrant’s officers and directors.(7)

10.33(b)+ 1988 Director Stock Option Plan and form of Outside Director Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement restated
effective May 7, 1997.(11)

10.37 L SI Products Supply Agreement with Sharp Corporation, dated October 1, 1993.(2)

10.37(a) Letter Agreement, dated August 20, 1996, by and between Registrant and Sharp Corporation, amending the LSI
Product Supply Agreement, dated October 1, 1993.(11)

10.37(b) Letter Agreement, dated May 22, 1997, by and between Registrant and Sharp Corporation, amending the LS| Product
Supply Agreement, dated October 1, 1993.(11)

10.37(c) Letter Agreement, dated May 22, 1998, by and between Registrant and Sharp Corporation, amending the LSl Product
Supply Agreement, dated October 1, 1993.(11)

#10.38+ Altera Corporation Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan and Trust Agreement dated February 1 1994, and forms
of Deferred Compensation Agreement.

10.39* Wafer Supply Agreement dated June 26, 1995 between Registrant and Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd.(3)

10.42* Amendment No. 1 dated as of October 1, 1995 to Wafer Supply Agreement dated as of June 26, 1995 by and between

Registrant and Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. and to Option Agreement 1 dated as of June 26, 1995
between Registrant and Taiwan Semiconductor M anufacturing Co., Ltd.(5)

10.42(a) Amendment of Wafer Supply Agreement dated June 1, 1997 by and between Registrant and Taiwan Semiconductor
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.(11)

10.45(a)+ 1996 Stock Option Plan, as amended October 5, 1999 and restated as of May 10, 2000.(12)

#10.45(b)+ Form of Stock Option Agreement under 1996 Stock Option Plan.

10.50 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated June 18, 1997.(6)

10.51(a)+ 1998 Director Stock Option Plan.(8)

10.51(b)+ Form of Stock Option Agreement under 1998 Director Stock Option Plan.(8)
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10.53 Product Distribution Agreement with Arrow Electronics Incorporated, effective January 26, 1999.(9)

10.55+ Form of Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement.(10)

10.56(a)+ 2000 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan No. 1.(13)

10.56(b)+ Form of Stock Option Agreement for Former Employees of Northwest Logic, Inc.(13)

10.56(c)+ Form of Stock Option Agreement for Former Founding Shareholders of Northwest Logic, Inc.(13)

10.57(a)+ Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement between the Registrant and John Daane.(15)

#10.57(b)+ Severance Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2000, by and between John Daane and Registrant.

#10.57(c)+ Changein Control Severance Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2000, by and between John Daane and Registrant.

#11.1 Computation of Earnings per Share (included on page 29).

#13.1 Annual Report to Stockholders for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 (to be deemed filed only to the extent
required by the instructions to Exhibits for Reports on Form 10-K).

#21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

#23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

#24.1 Power of Attorney (included on page 45).

(1) Incorporated by reference to identically numbered exhibit of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 33-17717), as

@

©)
4

®)

(©)
@)

®

©)

(10)

(11

(12)

(13)

(14)

amended, which became effective March 29, 1988.

Incorporated by reference to identically numbered exhibit of the Registrant’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31, 1993.

Incorporated by reference to identically numbered exhibit of the Registrant’s Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1995.

Incorporated by reference to identically numbered exhibit of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 33-61085), as
amended, which became effective July 17, 1995.

Incorporated by reference to identically numbered exhibit of the Registrant’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31, 1995.

Incorporated by reference to identically numbered exhibit of the Registrant’s Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1997.

Incorporated by reference to identically numbered exhibit of the Registrant’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31, 1997.

Incorporated by reference to identically numbered exhibit of the Registrant’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to identically numbered exhibit of the Registrant’s Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
1999.

Incorporated by reference to identically numbered exhibit of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-31304),
filed on February 29, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to identically numbered exhibit of the Registrant’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31, 1999.

Incorporated by reference to identically numbered exhibit of the Registrant’s Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to identically numbered exhibit of the Registrant’s Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2000.

Incorporated by reference to identically numbered exhibit of the Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K, filed on December 15, 2000.
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(15) Incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.2 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-54384), filed on January

* %

(b)

26, 2001.

Filed herewith.

Confidential treatment has previously been granted for portions of this exhibit pursuant to an order of the Commission.
Confidentia treatment has previously been requested for portions of this exhibit.

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this Report on Form 10-K pursuant to
Item 14(c) thereof.

Reports on Form 8-K.
The following reports on Form 8-K were filed during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000.

1. Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 17, 2000 and filed on December 11, 2000 announcing a jury verdict in the Xilinx
litigation.

2. Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 14, 2000 and filed on December 15, 2000 announcing the sale of our equity interest in
WaferTech, LLC.



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report on
Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf, by the undersigned thereto duly authorized.

ALTERA CORPORATION

By: /[ NATHAN SARKISIAN
Nathan Sarkisian
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

March 6, 2001

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Know all persons by these present, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Nathan Sarkisian, his or her
attorney-in-fact, with the power of substitution, for him or her in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this Report on Form 10-K,
and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documentsin connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact, or his or her substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10-K has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indi cated:

Signature Capacity in Which Signed Date

/s RODNEY SMITH Chairman of the Board of Directors March 6, 2001
Rodney Smith

/s JOHN P. DAANE President, Chief Executive Officer and Director March 6, 2001
John P. Daane (Principal Executive Officer)

/s NATHAN SARKISIAN Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer March 6, 2001
Nathan Sarkisian (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s CHARLES M. CLOUGH Director March 6, 2001

Charles M. Clough

/s MICHAEL A. ELLISON Director March 6, 2001
Michad A. Ellison

/s PAUL NEWHAGEN Director March 6, 2001
Paul Newhagen
/s ROBERT W. REED Director and Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors March 6, 2001
Robert W. Reed
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/s DEBORAH D. RIEMAN Director March 6, 2001
Deborah D. Rieman

/s WILLIAM E. TERRY Director March 6, 2001
William E. Terry
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EXHIBIT 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

The following list identifies only Registrant’s significant subsidiaries as defined in Rule 1-02(w) of Regulation S-X.

Jurisdiction Year
Name of Incorporation Organized
Altera International, Inc. Cayman Idands 1997
Altera International Limited Hong Kong 1997
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referencein the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (No. 33-22877, No. 33-37159, No. 33-57350,
No. 33-61085, No. 333-06859, No. 333-32555, No. 333-62917, N0.333-81787, No. 333-31304, No. 333-37216, No. 333-41688, No. 333-
47722 and No. 333-54384) and Form S-3 (No. 333-44746) of Altera Corporation of our report dated January 17, 2001 relating to the financial
statements, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
March 6, 2001

48



Designed by Curran & Connors, Inc. / www.curran-connors.com

Corporate Directory

Board of Directors

Rodney Smith
Chairman of the Board
Altera Corporation

John Daane
President and Chief Executive Officer
Altera Corporation

Charles M. Clough

Former Chairman, President,
and Chief Executive Officer
Wyle Electronics

Michael A. Ellison
Former Chief Executive Officer
Steller, Inc.

Paul Newhagen
Former Vice President, Administration
Altera Corporation

Robert W. Reed
Former Senior Vice President
Intel Corporation

William E. Terry

Former Director and
Executive Vice President
Hewlett-Packard Company

Deborah Rieman, Ph.D.

Former President and

Chief Executive Officer

CheckPoint Software Technologies, Inc.

Corporate Officers

John Daane
President and Chief Executive Officer

C. Wendell Bergere
Vice President, General Counsel,
and Secretary

Denis Berlan
Executive Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer

Erik R. Cleage
Senior Vice President, Marketing

John R. Fitzhenry
Vice President, Human Resources

Jordan Plofsky
Senior Vice President,
Embedded Processor Products

Lance M. Lissner
Senior Vice President,
Business Development

Nathan Sarkisian

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Michael Jacobs
Senior Vice President,
Worldwide Sales

Appointed Officers

Bahram Ahanin
Vice President, Design Automation

Alain Bismuth
Vice President,
New Market Development

Robert Blake
Vice President, Product Planning

Melonie C. Brophy
Vice President, Finance and Treasurer

Misha R. Burich
Senior Vice President,
Software Development

James W. Callas
Vice President, Finance and
Corporate Controller

Timothy W. Colleran
Vice President, Product Marketing

Donald E Faria
Vice President, Customer Marketing
and Applications

Francois Gregoire
Vice President, Technology

Frank L. Hannig
Vice President and
Chief Information Officer

William Y. Hata
Vice President, Product Engineering

Ben A. Lee
Vice President, Asia Pacific

Craig Lytle
Vice President,
Intellectual Property Business Unit

Robert C. Mahoney
Vice President, Strategic Accounts

Bruce Mielke
Vice President, Test Development

Thomas B. Murchie
Vice President, Operations

Chris T. K. Oh
Vice President, Asia Pacific Operations

Timothy J. Propeck
Vice President, North America Sales

Timothy J. Southgate
Vice President, Software Engineering

Clifton S. Tong

Vice President, Corporate Marketing

Nigel Toon
Vice President and
Managing Director, Europe

John E. Turner
Senior Vice President,
Design Engineering

Scott Wylie
Vice President, Investor Relations

Corporate Headquarters
101 Innovation Drive

San Jose, California 95134
(408) 544-7000
Independent Accountants
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California

Stock Listing

For the past two years, the quarterly
high and low closing sales prices for the
common stock, retroactively adjusted
for 2-for-1 splits in 1999 and 2000, were:

2000 1999
Quarter High Low  High Low
First 48 24 17% 12%:
Second  57%s 36%: 20%: 16%
Third 64'%s 43%%:  27% 17%6
Fourth 51/ 23%s  33% 20%

Registrar/Transfer Agent
Fleet National Bank

c/o EquiServe

PO. Box 43010

Providence, Rhode Island 02940
(781) 575-3120
http://www.EquiServe.com

Web Site

For current information on Altera
Corporation, visit our web site at
http://www.altera.com.

Additional Information

Please direct all requests to:
Investor Relations

101 Innovation Drive

San Jose, California 95134
(408) 544-7707

Business releases may be requested
from our Fax-on-Demand service

at (800) 789-2587 in the United States

and Canada, and at (408) 894-0466
from other international locations.

Copyright © 2001 Altera Corporation. Altera, The Programmable Solutions Company, ACEX, ACEX 1K, AMPP, APEX, APEX 20K, APEX 20KE, APEX 20KC, Classic,
ClockBoost, ClockLock, Excalibur, FastTrack, FineLine BGA, FLASHIlogic, FLEX, FLEX 10K, FLEX 10KA, FLEX 10KE, MAX, MAX 9000, MAX 7000, MAX 7000S,
MAX 7000A, MAX 7000B, MAX+PLUS, MAX+PLUS II, MegaCore, Mercury, MultiCore, MultiVolt, Nios, OptiFLEX, Quartus, and individual device designations are
trademarks and/or service marks of Altera Corporation in the United States and other countries. ARM is a registered trademark of ARM Limited. MIPS-based is
a trademark of MIPS Technologies, Inc. Altera acknowledges the trademarks of other organizations for their respective products or services mentioned in this

document. All rights reserved.
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